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CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION AND CORPORATE PROFILE jOburg Cﬂy
Section 1: Corporate Profile / Overview of the entity g
JOBURG | SOWETO | ROODEPOORT
The City Council of Johannesburg initially constructed the Johannesburg Civic Theatre in 1962, creating a high-
profile landmark on the top of the Braamfontein hill, which grew to become one of the most technically

proficient theatres in the southern hemisphere. It was operated by the Johannesburg Civic Theatre Association®.

In July 2000 — when theatres across the country were considered to be both creatively and financially moribund
— through the iGoli process, the Johannesburg Civic Theatre (Pty) Ltd was corporatised from the then
Johannesburg Civic Theatre Association, a Section 21 Company. It was then rebranded in 2009 as Joburg Theatre.

Roodepoort City Theatre NPC t/a Joburg Promusica was founded in 1980. The name of the theatre was later
changed to the Promusica Theatre, through the iGoli process in 2000. The theatre operates as a 328 seat
auditorium and an 80 seat box theatre. In 2009/10, the strategic positioning of the organisation was reviewed,
resulting in a stronger focus on the receiving house aspects of Promusica and a more concerted effort to attract
independent producers to the venue.

The Soweto Theatre in Jabulani, Soweto was officially launched in 2012.

In 2011, a high-level review of the City’s institutional arrangements was commissioned, and it resolved that
Joburg Theatre (SOC) Ltd and Roodepoort City Theatre NPC t/a Joburg Promusica be integrated into a single
theatre management company; and further to institutionalise the operations of the newly established Soweto
Theatre under the same structure.

The strategic rationale for this decision was as follows:

1) The governance structures of the entities were regarded as costly and perhaps not the ideal for small
entity/ies that, by the nature of the service it offers to communities, will always rely on some funding
from the City to be sustainable;

2) At the time, the relative independence of the entities had not facilitated an integrated strategic approach
and plan for the (sic three) theatres, or indeed for integrated arts and culture advancement and
resultant socio-economic benefit within the City.

Therefore, it was recommended that all the theatres be integrated under a single “Theatre Management
Company”, with one Board and “Group CEO/MD” to manage the three theatres. In addition, benefit would be
realised by savings at executive level (i.e. single CFO, Company Secretary, Shared Services, etc.).

The merger of the Joburg Theatre (SOC) Ltd and Roodepoort City Theatre NPC t/a Joburg Promusica was
approved by Council on 25 August 2011, pending the required due diligence and legal processes; and the
integrated theatre management company — now called Joburg City Theatres (JCT) — was mandated to render
the functions and services that, until 31 December 2012, were rendered by the three theatres. The effective
date for the integration was 1 January 2013.

Joburg Theatre is also permanent home to Joburg Ballet, which is supported by an annual grant from Joburg City
Theatres; as well as the Peoples Theatre Company — performing throughout the year to children between the

! Joburg Theatre — the First 45 Years, 1962~2007. September 2007

e e e e e e e e e
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ages of 3 and 13 — and one of the country’s most respected community development projects in the arts, the
tiny ‘black-box’ theatre known as space.com.

Since 2017, the Joburg Philharmonic Orchestra is also supported through an annual grant from Joburg City
Theatres.

While not its core mandate, over the period since 2013 the hospitality, catering and restaurant services provided
by Joburg City Theatres have also matured and grown, contributing significantly to revenue generation and to
the suite of services that Joburg City Theatres offers.

The Board of the integrated “Johannesburg City Theatres” (JCT) is the Accounting Authority in terms of the
Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA). The Board provides strategic direction, leadership and oversight,
50 as to enhance shareholder value and ensure Joburg City Theatres’ long-term sustainability, development and
growth. In fulfilling its responsibilities, the Board is supported by the Chief Executive Officer and the executive
team in implementing the approved Strategic Plan and policies.

Joburg City Theatres strives to comply with the principles contained in the King 4 code of Good Governance in
South Africa. In line with good corporate governance practices, the Board of Joburg City Theatres has developed
this 5-year corporate strategic plan for the organisation, which covers the period between 2019/20 and 2023/24.
Once this plan is approved, focus will then shift to the development of a series of aligned annual
performance/business plans for the organisation, which will reflect the medium-term and annual targets and
responsibilities of the rolling milestones defined by the strategic plan.

In terms of its planning approach, historically, the Joburg City Theatres has undertaken an annual process, led
by the Board, to develop an Annual Business Plan, which includes the current year and two outer years. The
challenge with this approach is that it is by its nature quite short-term (focused on the year at hand) and possibly
lacks a longer-term (5-year and beyond) view of where the Theatres are going. The Board thus decided to lead
a process for developing a longer-term strategic plan, which would provide a longer-term view of the Theatres.
This would then inform the rolling Annual Business Plans over the period (1st for 2019/20) — which are then a
series of progressive plans towards achieving the strategy.

The goal was to move beyond compliance driven planning to an integrated results-based approach to planning.
While it is appreciated that the period of a Joburg City Theatres 5-Year Strategic Plan would extend even beyond
the period of the Board’s tenure, this would form part of the Board “legacy”.

During November to December 2018, Joburg City Theatres thus embarked on an iterative process to critically
examine its strategic posture and direction in line with its mandate, and in light of shifts in the environment,
which have an impact on its planning and programme delivery. There was a need to examine and consider the
changes in the performance environment, as well as the policy framework. The process culminated in the
development of this strategic framework that is progressive in nature and practical to implement.

The overall aim of the process was to apply the principles of strategic review, analysis, planning, monitoring and
evaluation in developing a strategic plan; reflecting aligned institutional arrangements and critical success areas
to give effect to the strategic plan.

The planning process was necessarily iterative and focused on critically examining the strategic intent, goals,
objectives and performance metrics to ensure that they are specific, measurable, achievable, and realistic and
time bound —in accordance with “SMART” principles.
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In facilitating the process towards the development of the Strategic Plan, a Theory of Change Logic Model was

followed and informed the approach to the discussions and to the packaging of the strategic data, as follows:
Figure 1: The Theory of Change Logic Model Informing the Planning Approach

Strate_gic Ilignment

|_National Development Plan, Vision 2030 |

Joburg City Theatres
“THEORY OF CHANGE” Logic Model ( ‘Manifesto (Governing Party)
|_ - GDS and IDP .
' Environmental Realities _Stakeholder Expectations
|_____ Organisational Realities Stakeholder Mobilisation

Joburg City Theatres

Impact Achieved Pbiicy Goals i Vision and Misslonb c::;te::dG :::c; Isstrategic Qutcome- i Ir::i?faatitrs |
f — T e =
Outcomes Realised Strategic Goals Strategic Objectives / Outcomes I .o :_tcome
| ndicators
i - e —— t
Outputs Delivered hg:;::;‘:z: Strategic Programmes / Services [ Outputs In?i?ctaﬁ:l;trs
1 === e -,
Iml:::mw::tsed OP:';:T,::MI Operational Planning / Sequencing lrl::‘:lc::;?l{s
t . — 1 —— el
Inputs Utilised Activity Plans Activity Plans and Resource Deployment | Input indicators

In response to the various engagements and considerations, the Joburg City Theatres Strategic Plan presented
below seeks to provide the organisation with clarity of purpose and describes:

1) A strategic framework for Joburg City Theatres that defines the character of the organisation, including
a response to the regulatory, external and industry environment, and the expectations of the various
partners and stakeholders;

2) An articulation of the mandate, vision, mission and values of Joburg City Theatres, in light of a carefully
considered and defined response to its mandate and primary object;

3) The strategic role of Joburg City Theatres in relation to that of its partners from the state, civil society
and the private sector, both domestically and internationally, in together delivering well-planned,
effective and responsive programmes and services;

4) The Joburg City Theatres business model and service offerings, and a balanced and aligned set of
strategic goals, focus areas, objectives and aligned performance metrics for the five year period, that

seek to articulate:

a) How to reposition and enhance the visibility of the organisation both domestically and
internationally;

b) How to enhance the efficiency and effectiveness of Joburg City Theatres and its operations; and

c) How to best apply and leverage limited resources in order to grow the reach and impact of the

organisation in the next five years and beyond;

e e e e e ——————7
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5) The required institutional arrangements and organisational design considerations to give effect to the
strategy.

This Business Plan, as approved by the Board, then serves as input to the management team towards the
development of an aligned Annual Performance Plan for 2019/20. Management will then actively pursue
implementation of the approved Business Plan as the aligned to the Five Year Strategic Plan of 2019/20-2023/24,
under the oversight and guidance of the Board.

Mandate and Core Business
In response to the National and City policy framework outlined above, Joburg City Theatres is governed in terms
of its Memorandum of Incorporation and the amended Shareholder Agreement, that which outlines the role
and primary objects of Joburg City Theatres. Read together, in terms of these documents, Joburg City Theatres
focuses on the delivery of the following services:

1)~ The management and promotion of high-quality performing arts and enteriainment facilities;
2) Provision of supportive hospitality infrastructure and services;
3) To enable Joburg residents to access and benefit from quality arts and culture facilities and experiences;

4) The hosting and showcasing of revenue generating local and international productions that have a
positive impact on the financial sustainability of Joburg City Theatres, whilst also exposing Joburger’s to
globally recognised professional entertainment;

5) The hosting of quality performing arts and entertainment productions that are attractive to both
traditional and regular theatre goers, but also to new and diverse audiences;

6) The promotion and development of local content and local markets through programmes that advance
social cohesion and support the transformation of society;

7) The in-house and/or co-production and staging of arts and entertainment productions in collaboration
with local arts practitioners, entrepreneurs and enterprises;

8) The acceleration of youth development through enhancing the teaching and learning experience of
learners, programmes that stimulate an interest in the arts as a viable career path and the provision of
opportunities for future arts practitioners and entrepreneurs;

9) To conceptualise, create, produce, market and disseminate content, both through own facilities and by
taking shows to communities;

10) To generate revenue over and above the subsidy received from the City through the effective delivery
of the above services.

The primary mandate of Joburg City Theatres is:

To provide a high quality live entertainment and artistic platform through the integrated
management of the theatre venues and an innovative and inclusive programme, which serves the
diverse communities of the City of Joburg and supports social cohesion and an urban culture based on
inclusivity and tolerance.

In support of this primary mandate, the core business of Joburg City Theatres is:

——— e ———————t——— e e —————— ===+ =_——ec ===
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= To provide high quality, well-managed and accessible theatre and live entertainment venues, and
proactively work to develop new audiences and markets;

= To identify, commission and produce locally relevant productions and experiences; and support
youth development, including the development of future arts practitioners and entrepreneurs; and

= To offer quality support and services that enable the acquisition and hosting of professional
productions and experiences that are relevant to diverse audiences.

Vision

Joburg City Theatres sets for itself the following vision:

A leading African artistic platform providing sustainable, development-oriented and diverse
programming.

Mission
In achieving the above vision, Joburg City Theatres’ mission is:

To produce and present innovative and relevant indigenous and international entertainment
programmes that promote multiculturalism, diversity and social cohesion.

In so doing, Joburg City Theatres’ commits to:

= Conceptualise, manage, host and promote high quality performing arts and entertainment
experiences and facilities;

= Create opportunities for affordable access and use of theatres by all communities;

= Provide opportunities for the youth, including the development of future arts practitioners and
entrepreneurs;

= Grow shareholder value by ensuring sound financial management and governance and growth in
revenue; and

®  Work in partnership with others to maximise the impact of our programmes.

Values

To support and drive its core strategy, Joburg City Theatres appreciates that values identify the principles for
the conduct of the institution in carrying out its mission. Joburg City Theatres’ values define a citizen-oriented
approach for producing and delivering its services in line with the service delivery improvement priorities of the
Col, as follows:

Value What it means in practice

Service with Pride and = We will display a results orientation and a commitment to perform and
Dignity deliver on the priorities of the organisation;
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What it means in practice

‘ = We will place customer service excellence at the centre of everything we
do;

| = We will do so in a competent, timely, cost effective and efficient manner;

‘ = We will take ownership of our work at all times and take responsibility for
i our actions;

» We will seek to ensure that the hospitality, arts and creative industries
contribute substantially to small business development, job creation, urban

| development and renewal in the City of Joburg.
| i

| UBUNTU (Care and = We will do our work with care, empathy and concern for the wellbeing of
concern for people) vulnerable communities, customers and stakeholders;

| = We will at all times display tolerance, respect and consideration of cultural
diversity;

= We will implement Batho Pele Principles.

Professionalism = We will disp_lay punctuality, reliability, dependability and a commitment to
meet deadlines;

= We will act in a transparent manner and display ethical and consistent
behaviour;

= We will behave with integrity in all our actions, always acting in the best
interest of the citizen and organisation.

Agility = We will seek to be flexible, adaptable and résponsive to our highly
competitive environment, and to shifts in the COJ environment;

=  We will value and promote innovative ideas and solutions in order to deliver
exceptional results;

= We will strive to identify opportunities to delivery services more
economically and efficiently, and to respond to revenue opportunities,
given the constrained fiscal environment;

= We will seek to leverage the positive social benefit of the arts, and to use
the arts to address societal issues and promote greater quality of life.

Designed as a broad set of programmatic interventions, the National Development Plan {NDP) proposes a
‘virtuous cycle’ of growth and development, whilst reducing poverty and inequality. The enablers are strong
leadership throughout society, national consensus, social cohesion and a capable state. Chapter 15 of the NDP
asserts that:

“Arts and culture opens powerful spaces for engagement about where a society finds itself and where it is going.
Promoted effectively, the creative and cultural industries can contribute substantially to small business
development, job creation, urban development and renewal.”

In support of the NDP, the CoJ Growth and Development Strategy 2030 (GDS) presents five systemic outcomes
that serve to guide and orientate all planning in the City and shape the priorities of the City to 2030, namely:

Outcome 1:  Improved quality of life and development-driven resilience for all

JCT Fourth Quarter Report 2019/20 Page 11



Outcome 2:  Improved quality of life and development-driven resilience for all

Outcome 3:  An inclusive, job-intensive, resilient, competitive and smart economy that harnesses the
potential of citizens..

Outcome 4: A high performing metropolitan government that proactively contributes to and builds a
sustainable, socially inclusive, locally integrated and globally competitive Gauteng City Region

The above strategy and policy imperatives inform this business plan of Joburg City Theatres for the financial year
2019/20. In this regard, Joburg City Theatres is a progressive, complementary and supportive intergovernmental
partner of the Department of Arts Culture.

As part of the Social and Human Development Cluster and located under the Department of Community
Development with the MMC as Executive Authority, Joburg City Theatres is primarily tasked to support GDS
Qutcome 2_aimed at a future that presents significantly imnroved human and social development realities in
the City; and to ensure an integrated approach to providing a comprehensive and effective service to all citizens
of the City.

It is noted that JCT also contributes significantly to GDS Outcome 1, in terms of ensuring the role of the arts and
creative industries in supporting a growing, diverse and competitive economy that creates jobs.

In turn, the following diagrams reflect the alignment of the GDS to the 2016 electoral mandate, the new strategic
agenda and the 2016-2021 IDP priorities.

Alignment to the New Strategic Agenda:

Alignment to the New Strategic Agenda:
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The Aligned Col Priorities:

The above priorities are further unpacked specific to the Theatres, as follows:
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Specific priorities focus areas for JCT to 2021:
The following table presents the Joburg City Theatres alignment to the above priorities, and outlines
the specific focus areas to 2021 for each:

COJ PRIORITIES AND IDP
PROGRAMMES

JOBURG CITY THEATRES STRATEGIC FOCUS AREAS
(Informing JCT Strategic Objectives and Key Result Areas)

|
COJ Priority 7: Active and Engaged ~ = THEMATIC FOCUS OF PRODUCTIONS: (Edu-tainment and

Citizenry productions that address issues).
> IDP Programme 1:
Accelerated and visible = Relevant programming;
service delivery and = Host, develop and stage productions that tell the story —and
reintroduction of _-promote civicnride / cohesion;.
coproduction in the = Culture, heritage and arts appreciation and education.

delivery of basic services

= Audience and content development;

COJ Priority 8: Sustainable )
»  Arts education and arts talent development.

Economic Growth

> IDP Programmes 5 & 6: |
= Promote accessibility to JCT venues and improve the utilisation of

lob opportunities and
creation facilities;
Development and support =  Promote the visibility of facilities and JCT brand;
of SMME = Take arts to communities.
col Priority 4: Sustainable Service = Grow shareholder value by ensuring sound financial
Delivery management, financial control and growth in revenue;
> IDP Programme 1: Accelerated = Cost efficiency across value-chain;
and visible service delivery and = Customer care improvement; |
reintroduction of coproduction = Integrate the programming of the theatres and integrate the |
in the delivery of basic services value chain of the theatres;
= Ensure efficient and effective internal business processes and |
systems. i
. . |
€O Priority 1: Good Governance = Put mechanisms in place to verify observance of code of
> IDP Programme 11: Combat conduct and ethics and make it known within JCT;
corruption, fraud and = Perform a comprehensive fraud risk assessment as part of the

maladministration | operational risk assessment;

| = Develop and deploy preventative and detective fraud control
activities;

: =  Formulate and collate a fraud response plan to ensure a
coordinated approach to investigation and corrective action.

COJ Priority 9: Sustainable = Promote accessibility to JCT venues in support of quality liveable
Environmental Development spaces / urban revitalisation around the precincts;
> IDP Programme 2: Impact the = |ncrease asset utilisation and leveraging investment;

housing market including the
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JOBURG CITY THEATRES STRATEGIC FOCUS AREAS

O (Informing JCT Strategic Objectives and Key Result Areas)

PROGRAMMES
integration, development and e well planned and implerﬁén?ed_CAPEX and maintenance
maintenance hostels and flats programme.

(o) Priority 2: Financial ' = Grow shareholder value by ensuring sound financial

sustainability management, financial control and growth in revenue;

> IDP Programme 2: Improve and =  SMME support;
strengthen financial position = Ensure sound and consistent supply chain management processes

that support preferential procurement, and enhance the
contribution of JCT to enterprise development;
»  Cultivate local entrepreneurs / suppliers;
| = Encourage urban regeneration in Braamfontein / Newtown and
Jabulani Cultural Precinct nodes, in order to stimulate economic
growth in contribution to the 5% target.

Section 2: Strategic Objectives

As the organisation pursues its Vision and Mission, the Strategic Objectives of Joburg City Theatres are derived
from the above strategic intent and are aligned to both the GDS and CO) strategic priorities and outcomes.

JCT forms part of the City’s Human and Social Development Cluster, integrating the work of the City departments
and entities that take the strategic and practical lead on the City’s constitutional mandate to promote the social
development and upliftment of its residents. Though the cluster contributes to all four strategic outcomes as
set out by the 2040 GDS, it is primarily organised around outcome 3: Advance pro-poor development that
provides meaningful redress and outcome 5: Build caring, safe and secure communities

This is a commitment to improving social, health and safety conditions city wide, with a targeted focus on
poverty and deprivation, a strong push to promote social inclusion and an emphasis on self-sustaining
transformation and building capacity amongst residents themselves to eliminate long-standing problems and
handle new shocks. ICT’s contribution in the cluster is “targeting deprived spaces and communities through
Arts and Culture Programming”.

In delivering its core functions and services, Joburg City Theatres is aligned to, and supports the vision of the City
of Johannesburg as articulated in the GDS:

Johannesburg — a World Class African City of the Future — a vibrant, equitable African city, strengthened
through its diversity; a city that provides real quality of life; a city that provides sustainability for all its
citizens; a resilient and adaptive society. Joburg.

My City — Our Future!

For the period 2019/20 and beyond, five (5) Strategic Objectives have been developed in order to enable Joburg
City Theatres to effectively focus and prioritise its options in delivering on its mandate and respond to the above

#
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strategic focus areas. The Strategic Objectives are framed as statements that describe the outcome expected as
a result of Joburg City Theatres’ intervention, and are elaborated upon in the table below:

Five Strategic Objectives have been developed in order to enable Joburg City Theatres to effectively focus and
prioritise its options in delivering on its mandate and to respond to the above strategic focus areas.

The Strategic Objectives are framed as statements that describe the outcome expected as a result of Joburg City
Theatres’ intervention and are elaborated upon in the table below:

Table 3: Joburg City Theatres Strategic Objectives
Joburg City Theatres |
Strategic Objective
|
| (Towards achieving the Objective Description and Focus Areas Col Priority Alignment

mandate, mission and
Strategic Priorities)

e  Provision of = Support local content development = Promote economic
| opportunities for and support for development in the development and
' the youth, including Arts. investment activity.
! future arts * Facilitate relationships and co-
' practitioners and productions that widen the
entrepreneurs. participation of local producing
partners engaged with JCT.
= Facilitate production partnerships with
theatres in South Africa and the African :
Diaspora for the development of '
productions from African stories.
= Implement structured opportunities |
for the development of the talents and |
skills of young people in the arts.
| ® Sound and consistent supply chain
' management processes that support
preferential procurement, and
enhance the contribution of JCT to
enterprise development.

e High quality = Excellence in delivery of the JCT core = |mprove service
performing arts and business, in support of the mission and delivery performance
entertainment mandate. and service delivery
experiences and | = Strengthening the acquiring and culture (SD defined as
facilities. core business).

hosting of work.

| = Supporting the development and .
| creation of work. = Enhance security in all
open public spaces — |
parks, cemeteries,

= Ensuring facilities and infrastructure
that is excellent.

e —
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Joburg City Theatres

Strategic Objective

(Towards achieving the
mandate, mission and
Strategic Priorities)

Affordable access
to and use of
theatres by
communities.

Good governance,
financial
sustainability and
sound
management.

JCT Fourth Quarter Report 2019/20

i

1

Objective Description and Focus Areas

Encourage urban regeneration in
Braamfontein / Newtown and Jabulani
Cultural Precinct nodes, in order to
stimulate economic growth in
contribution to the 5%.

Monitor and enhance customer
satisfaction and the achievement of
service standards.

THEMATIC FOCUS OF PRODUCTIONS:
Edu-tainment and productions that
address issues.

Engagement with arts practitioners,
private sector and communities in
bringing new audiences into contact
with JCT programmes.

Develop future audiences by providing
discounted tickets to learners.

Provide opportunities for development
of local content and maximise
accessibility.

Mechanisms and approaches that
assist to make theatre going practical
for disadvantaged communities.

Optimal use of allotments and related
opportunities in the theatre precincts.

Balance the imperative for revenue
generation with socio-economic
development.

Grow shareholder value by ensuring
sound financial management, financial
control and growth in revenue.

Increase asset utilisation and
leveraging investment.

Cost efficiency across value-chain.

Customer care improvement.

Col Priority Alignment

cities facilities,
museums, etc.

Encourage urban
regeneration in key
urban nodes.

Create opportunities
for affordable access
and use of theatres by
all communities.

Implement social
awareness
programmes in these
recreational sites.

Encourage urban
regeneration in key
urban nodes.

Making local
government
responsive.

Fiscal responsibility
and resolve billing
system problems.

Improve service
delivery performance
and service delivery
culture (Governance).




Joburg City Theatres
Strategic Objective

(Towards achieving the Objective Description and Focus Areas

mandate, mission and :
Strategic Priorities) |
!

| = [ntegrate the programminé of the
theatres and integrate the value chain
of the theatres.

= Ensure efficient and effective internal
business processes and systems.

e  Mobilisation of = Build JCT brand awareness and grow
rescurces to market share of ICT as a leading brand.
support the -

Build JCT visibility through enhanced
marketing, communication and
stakeholder management.

mandate, and
improved brand
recognition and

awareness of JCT. Leveraging of mutually beneficial

partnering agreements and joint
programmies.

Col Priority Alignment

Making local
government
responsive.

Fiscal responsibility

and resolve billing
system problems.

Improve service
delivery performance

» Sponsorships and donations. and service delivery
‘ culture (Governance).

Section 3: Salient Features

*  Following President Cyril Ramaphosa’s announcement that that gathering of more than 100 people is
prohibited. JCT Theatres had to postpone all shows until further notice. JCT started streaming previous
production on the Joburg Theatre YouTube page.

o Uy
VIDEOS PLAYLISTS CHANNELS ABOUT Q
Uploads ~  PLAYALL = SORTEY

*  89% scorecard achievement and 100% CAPEX Spend

» The average spend for JCT on BBBEE is 101% while spend on SMMEs averages at 62%.
» The total revenue for 2018/19 financial year was R180 million and in the 2019/20 is R183 million

representing an increase of 1.7%.
» The earned revenue 2018/19 was R63.8 million and in the 2019/20 is R54.9 million representing a
reduction of 14%.

- __________________________________________________________________lI
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Section 5: Chairperson’s Foreword

It is with great honour and pride to present JCT’s Fourth Quarter Report for 2019/20.
This report outlines and account of service delivery programmes and financial
performance of the entity.

During an extended period of economic challenges, the country is experiencing due
to the COVID-119 pandemic, JCT constantly remains relevant and attempted new
ways of doing business by live-streaming productions.

However as we forge forward, JCT board conducted an Induction on 23 June 2020.

Board members undertook a walk-about in the Joburg Theatre and were inducted on

=how-the stage machinery operates. They were also inducted in the following areas through presentation from
management and Group Governance:

JCT's Business Model incl. Entity’s mandate and vision

Entity’s core business (programming and youth development)

Finance Presentation

Human Capital Management

CoJ’s Group Policy on the Governance of the Group Advisory Committees, Municipal Entities Boards of
Directors and Independent Audit Committees

Quarterly reporting processes in the City and the governance structures the report goes through

e Fiduciary duties of Non-Executive Directors

During the quarter, the Board also reviewed and approved the entity’s Business Plan for 2020/21. The approved
Business Plan of 2020/21 financial year, will consider the priorities as stipulated in the IDP and aligned to the
Government of Local Unity Mandate. Management has developed a programme of actions that will clearly divide
between shorter-term quick wins and longer-term priority programmes and intervention to ensure that JCT
remains relevant in the midst of COVID-19.

Organisational Review

The position of the CFO became vacant from 1 January 2020 due to the expiry of the former CFO’s contract on
31 December 2019. The board requested and extension of the CFO’s contract be extended effective from 1
January 2020 to 30 June 2020 while the recruitment process was conducted. Solomon Mphakathi who is the
entity’s substantive Chief Financial Officer, was re-appointed by the board of directors with effect from 1 July
2020 on a fixed term contract ending on 30 June 2025. The Board would like to congratulate Solomon Mphakathi
o his reappointment as JCT's CFO.

On behalf of the board, | would like to thank the Executive Mayor for his vision in leading this amazing and
exciting Government of Local Unity. Our gratitude also goes to the Member of Mayoral Committee for
Community Development, Clir Margaret Arnolds for her strategic leadership representing the shareholder, the
City Management for guidance and continuous support and all stakeholders for their ongoing engagement and
support. | also wish to express my appreciation to JCT executive team and all employees for their collective effort
even under this dark could of COVID-19 for effectively executing JCT’s mandate, vision and mission.

Desmond Ndzipho
Chairperson of the Board
Joburg Theatre (SOC) Ltd

R ——————

JCT Fourth Quarter Report 2019/20 Page 19



Section 6: Chief Executive Officer’s Report

The 4th Quarter of 2019/2020 programming year at Joburg City Theatres, (JCT), comes
to an end after 96 days of a national lockdown as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic.
The lockdown, which began at stage 5, is now at Alert Level 3. The lockdown has had
a great impact on the programming operations of the JCT. The theatres had postpone,
and cancel its scheduled programming. This resulted in hefty financial losses to the
theatre, and all those who depend on the theatre for their livelihoods.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a significant impact on the performing arts, mirroring
its impacts across all arts sectors. Due to physical distancing requirements and closure
of the physical venues, curtailing not only public performances but also rehearsals,
many performing arts institutions attempted to adapt by offering new (or newly
expanded) digital services. In particular this resulted in the free online streaming of
previously recorded performances of manv companies, especiallv orchestral performances and plays. Theatre
performances have been cancelled or delayed.

The biggest challenges for the arts and artists is the complete loss of income, the cancellation of potential work
planned over the next few months, the uncertainty and the duration of lockdown for the sector. In some
countries, restrictions have been eased and in SA we have moved to Level 3 - public gathering spaces like
theatres are only allowed to have 50 persons. Many theatres abroad believe that it will only be possible from
2021. It looks like theatres will only be open again in about October and that will come with a new set of
restrictions, taking social distancing into account. That is a long time without income for artists, institutions and
those who work in the industry. The entity will have to wait for direction from the government to see how to
navigate the way forward.

JCT began exploring online opportunities in the 2018/2019 financial year; this included speaking to various
potential partners, following the global trends, and building a digital archive. These efforts placed JCT in a strong
position at the onset of the pandemic. JCT was able to retrieve content from previous productions to stream
online and content from its strategic partners which include Joburg Ballet, and Johannesburg Philharmonic
Orchestra.

The shows streamed included Gibson Kente's Too Late, pantomime Snow White, and music revue Supreme
Divas. Bantu, The National School of the Arts - Gibson Kente's TOO LATE, Artist Talk with Sanelisiwe Yekani -
writer and producer of Ndikho, NSA’s Hip-Hop Hamlet, Youth Day Special Music, Poetry and Comedy, NSA’s Ruby
Suite and Amanda.

o Tak sy Bate
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Youth Month highlights the important event of the June 16th Youth Uprising in the history of South Africa and
continues to be a month of commemoration, sharing and learning. We were streaming the most engaging and
relevant shows, prudently crafted by our Youth and Community Development Programme. The youth month
program presented plays, stand-up comedy, poetry, and music in partnership with the National School of Arts
(NSA), Art24, Indie Music and other Soweto Theatre Junior Orchestra.

Joburg City Theatres (JCT) continues to create content for streaming during the Lockdown as per the new
regulations to reach both internal and external target markets. In addition, to make use of an integrated
communication approach to reach as many potential audiences as possible and reach them as many times as
possible to create top of mind awareness.

Regulations have been passed for the re-opening of theatres, and other like institutions. JCT looks forward to a
new year of a more carefully curated programme of high quality smaller sized productions that will be digitised,
to simultaneously build an online presence.

The theatre experience will always be a unique and special one, what lies ahead is are opportunities to enhance
that experience. The 2020/2021 financial year with be an exceptionally challenging one with lots of new
variables in the process of making and viewing theatre. JCT, with the unwavering support it receives from the
City of Johannesburg (Col), is well placed to emerge triumphant into the new era theatre globally.

JCT set 22 key performance indicators in the approved business plan for the current financial years. KIPs/Targets
(KP11,2,3,4,5,6,7,10,11 and 21) were revised in the current business scorecard as an enhancement change
due to the implications caused by Covid-19.

The performance for the quarter under review is:

e 19 KPIs were measured for the quarter under review, 17 KPIs were achieved and this constitutes 89%
achievement

JCT will continue to show the crucial role that arts have to play to shape and mould society towards the broader
national vision. | would like to thank the board and management by remaining committed to achieving the strong
financial and operational results.

The support from the city leadership continues to provide guidance and direction relating to all aspects of the
business and matters of governance. CoJ various departments have provided much needed assistance and
leadership. We value the immense support by the MMC Community Development - Councillor Margaret
Arnolds- through her vested interest in the theatre business, and her passion of prioritizing Youth Development
in line with the City’s human development agenda to provide proper, well-equipped early childhood
development education and infrastructure in deprived communities. Last but not least, to congratulate Solomon
Mphakathi on his re-appointment as the entity’s CFO and share my gratitude to staff, patrons and stakeholders
for the support and commitment shown in the past 12 months of the financial year.

Xoliswa Nduneni-Ngema
Chief Executive Officer
Joburg Theatre (SOC) Ltd

f
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Section 7: Chief Financial Officer’s Report

Executive Summary
Revenue

It gives me great pleasure and it is my singular honour to give JCT’s fourth quarter financial
highlights. The entity did not really anticipate the full extent and scope of how the lockdown
would impact the sector when it was initially announced. The concern for the economic
impact was clear but, on so many other levels, it has been new ground for the industry. It
turned out to be nothing like originally expected it would be. The experience has been
surreal, often confusing, but, mostly, it has beena powerful time for reflection, introspection
and cognitive thinking. The impact of this pandemic on the arts and economies is devastating, not only in South
Africa but globally. The arts feed the soul and, at a time like this, its absence is felt deeply as if spirit is lacking.
From an economic perspective, we are reminded what a global village the world has become an intricate,
interwoven inter-dependence on which the capitalist system is based and thrives for profit. The extent of job
and income losses is enormous and will continue to be devastating for artists and the sector.

The pandemic has made us all rethink the future and how we do things from now on, and that certainly applies
to the arts. There can be no denying that it will somehow change much of what we have become used to and
how we've taken so much for granted. Theatre is a lived experience, an exchange between artists and audience,
thoughts and ideas, as it entertains and moves us from our comfort zones. It should not only show us that which
is comfortable and familiar, but it should also profoundly affect us, challenge us, transport and transform us.
The entity believes the arts will continue to be that conduit in the future and that it would be more vital.

The entity has certainly seen new trends emerging. The biggest one being the rush to digital or livestreaming.
However, the entity does not believe that as a medium, it can replace the essence of what theatre is or serves
to be. Nothing can replace the live experience, being in the same space watching it live, that engagement or
interaction between audiences and artists and even amongst audiences. Another trend is that creativity and
‘thinking out of the box’ is emerging, a sense of recalibration and rethinking of the arts. But, Theatre will always
be needed to entertain, educate, lift us and move us deeply as few other mediums can. JCT’s performance is
therefore not immune from the effects of these macro-economic factors, more so that the operations of the
entity are in entertainment which is viewed as a luxury in the context of a struggling economy. Notwithstanding
the aforementioned economic challenges the entity has shown resilience and relatively maintained satisfactory
revenue performance.

Total Revenue 5019/20 = R183 million up 1.7% t

eThe total revenue for 2018/19 financial year was R180 million and in the 2019/20 is R183 million
representing an increase of 1.7%.

Earned revenue 2019/0 R54.9 million down 14% ‘
eThe earned revenue 2018/19 was R63.8 million and in the 2019/20 is R54.9 million representing a

‘ reduction of 14%. t

Hospitag:)\[lg;\gocatering R31.9 million up by 15%

sHospitality and catering revenue for 2018/19 was R31.9 million and in the 2019/20 is R27.2 million
representing a decrease of 15%.

f
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Income 183370 199383 180290 @ -8% @ 2%
Rental Of Facilities & Equipment 4 907 4 856 6612 B 1% @ -26%
Interest Earned from External Investments 4735 5 068 so3a @ -7%x@ -6%
Operating Grants and Subsidies 128469 128469 116447 @ 0% @ 10%
Arts Alive 8 696 8 697 8700 B 0% B 0%
In-House Stage Productions 7713 9713 9283 @ -21% @ -17%
Sponsorships - 1780 - 8 -100% @ 0%
Hospitality and Catering 27193 37878 31926 @ -28% @ -15%
Ticketing Services 745 638 1322 @ 17% @ -44%
Management Fees - 1438 - B -100% @B 0%
Other Income 912 846 966 @ 8% @ -6%

|_
Actual to Current
Budget % to Prior %

~ Full Year Full Year | Full Year ‘
Actual Budget Actual

2019/20 2019/20 IMQIIB
R0 R'000  R'000

Reduction on earned revenue primarily results from a shortfall in in-house productions, hospitality, and catering

services

Table and Graph below is a summary of main revenue items for the 4™ quarter:

Income
Rental Of Facilities & Equipment

Operating Grants and Subsidies
Arts Alive

In-House Stage Productions
Sponsorships

Hospitality and Catering
Ticketing Services
Management Fees

Other Income

~ Actual_Qtr4 Budget_Qtr4 Actual Qtrd

Actualto  Currentto
2019/20  2019/20  2018/19 Lo Sesin | Bioix :!

_R000  R000  ROOO |
43 828 aa152 @ 18 @  -19%
90 264| @ 3% B -98%
Interest Earned from External Investments 0 463 @ -52570% B -55%
34542 0% B 25%
- 0% @ -100%
2560 0%l -100%
1780 -100% & 0%
9536 1%l  -93%
1303 -102% B -95%
1438 -100% & 0%
306 -78% B -82%
4th Quarter Revenue contribution by line
item
Special Projects and Other Income 0%
Ticketing Services 0%
Hospitality and Catering | 2%
In-House Stage Productions 0% = Seriesl

Operating Grants and Subsidies
Interest Earned from External Investments

Rental Of Facilities & Equipment

0%

e ———————— 7%
1%
0%

20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

R S
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Following the announcement by President Cyril Ramaphosa of 15 March 2020 declaring that COVID-19 had
become a “national disaster and including school closures, travel restrictions, and bans on large gatherings.
Given the fact that the outbreak of COVID 19 has interrupted most activities planned for the 3rd and 4th quarter
of 2019/20 financial year, Joburg City Theatres has taken the approach to do COVID 19 special adjustment
budget. The table below depicts the financial impact of the COVID 19 on revenue:

Income 202 9

Rental Of Facilities & Equipment 8 458 4907 @1 -43% B -42%
Interest Earned from External Investments 700 473 - -11% B -17%
Operating Grants and Subsidies 120628 — 128469 —128465-F x A 7%
Arts Alive 0% & 0%
In-House Stage Productions f: 9713 7 713 -22% B -38%
Sponsorships 780 “ 0% B -100%

Hospitality and Catering
Ticketing Services
Management Fees
Other Income

o @ -2%E -10%

-6% Bl -33%
-68% Bl -63%
0% B -100%
-41% Bl -37%

37878 27193 &
: 745 JB

846 912

e

Explanation of Variances

v

v

Rental of facilities and equipment- This line item was adjusted down from planned revenue (R8.4m) to
R4.8m COVID 19 special adjustment. The actual revenue is 42% below the planned revenue due to the
COVID 19 regulation which banned the theatre activities.

Interest on investments- The achievement is below the planned target by 17% for the same reason
above. The planned revenue was R5.7m which had to be adjusted down by 11%

In-house productions- The unfavourable variance is attributable to the lockdown and difficult economic
conditions. This line item was also adjusted during the COVID 19 special adjustment process down to
R9.7m which represent 22% cut while the actual achievement to the planned revenue is 38% adverse
variance.

Hospitality and Catering- The revenue from this business was affected by the pandemic which led to
the revised revenue by 6% to the planned revenue and the actual achievement is 38% lower than
initially planned revenue.

Ticketing Services- The effect of the lockdown also affected this line item and the entity had to adjust
its planned revenue by 41%. The actual revenue is 37% below the planned revenue.

Special projects and other income- This line item is also a variable income and with the closure of
theatres it was adjusted down by 41% whilst the revenue earned is 37% below planned revenue.

The table below reflects revenue declining from R54m in the 1% quarter to R35m in the 4™ quarter which was
the period when his excellence president Cyril Maphosa announced the national state of disaster.

#
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INCOME STATEMENT

First Quarter l Second Quarter I

Third Quarter

[

Fourth Quarter

I YEAR TO DATE

|Main Accoun Sub AccountName

Actual Actual

Actual

Actual

Actual_YTD

INCOME 40214201 183370370
Rental Of Facilities & Equipment 4907 355
Interest Eamed from External Investmen 4734737
Operating Grants and Subsidies 128 469 000
Arts Alive 8695 650
Joburg Film Office 0
In-House Stage Productions 7713028
In House Music Programme 0
Sponsorships 0
Food Beverage And Retail /Stages 7409414 11009502 7948076 826424 27193416
Ticketing Services 299018 285 959 132171 27762 744910
Management Fees 0 0 0 0 0
Special Projects and Other Income 704 -49105 65 858 912273

Expense 56295 652 58774391 40811483 39757001 195777821
Employee Related Costs 21251668 21885387 21590588 25668 560 90 396 202
Directors and Committee Members 190000 146 000 462000 322000 1120000
Depreciation & Asset Imparment —-361:586- —615:403- ---615403- 205138 —— - 1797526~
Repairs And Maintenance 665 315 739511 782 100 892074 3079000
Contracted Services 734903 367 634 237087 163986 1503610
insurance 99699 208 964 0 0 308663
Joburg Ballet 7951721 7951721 2370779 2370779 20645 000
Joburg Film Office 0 0 [} 0 0
Arts Alive 9180448 0 0 762729 8411718
General Expenses 15860 312 26859771 14759526 10897 198 68516102

TRADING SURPLUS /{ SHORTFALL) I -2045 672 -5 591 568 -597 282 -4033635 -12407 451

Revenue by region: 75% of total revenue generated is from Joburg Theatre. Other theatres mainly
contribute on rentals and hospitality and catering. The Zoo contributes about 13% of the total hospitality
and catering revenue. See table below:

| Consolidated Revenue JCT

2018
104 432
70 506

2016
73 502
69 956

2017
94 072
68 145

Revenue category
Subsidy
Earned Income

128 469 116 447

63 842

2018
70050
19339
85 054

2017
63 301
8000
83 901

155

2016
44 794
8000
90 181

Expenditure category
Salaries and wages
Grants and subsidies paid
General expenses

77526
20467
87491

Surplus for the period -12 407 -5 195 495 482

—_—_—— e - . ————— =
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Revenue For the Past 5 years EXPENDITURE FOR THE PAST 5 YEARS

140000
120000 469 80383 )1 516
100000 osu/J
- 301’"’J
8@ ﬁk\ﬁs&u\m 447
60000 o
40000
20000
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
smnn Sybsidy  ewewanEarned Income — —Salaries and wages Grants and subsidies paid — — General expenses
Annual Revenue Trend
200 000
2%
13% 4 A A
150 000 f
100 000
50 000

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Expenditure

JCT continues to employ its utmost financial discipline when it comes to expenditure management. Total
Expenditure for the 2019/20 is 5% below budget for the 4" quarter and 2% below the annual budget primarily
because several line items on the expenditure recorded savings. The table below depicts expenditure
performance against target for the full year and 4™ quarter:

Acuialln mm:wl
Budget%  Pror% |

ﬂnual ahr'&‘[uudm atra Aﬂdn!_ﬂh‘4|

Expenditure 39 757 41728 a2755 @ 5% & 8%
Employee Related Costs 25 669 24 378 20463 © 5% H -20%
Directors and Committee Members 322 223 62 . -45% & -81%
Depreciation & Asset Imparment 205 - 424 @ -100% . 107%
Repairs And Maintenance 892 1157 656 El 23% @ -26%
Contracted Services 164 496 860 - 67% - 424%
Insurance - 109 107 @ 100%E 100%
Joburg Ballet 2371 2371 3129 @& 0% & 32%
Arts Alive . 763 - 306 @ o Bl  140%
In-House Productions 2265 1017 - 148 B -123% @ -107%
Hospitality and Catering 1943 5282 6175 - 63% n 218%
General Expenses 6 689 6 696 10721 @ 0% B 60%
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Expenditure 195777 199383 185483 2B 5%
Employee Related Costs 90 396 90 796 76 135 & ox Bl -16%
Directors and Committee Members 1120 1900 1112 @ 41% B -1%
Depreciation & Asset Imparment 1797 1576 1641 B -14% HE -9%
Repairs And Maintenance 3079 3380 2469 [ 9% B -20%
Contracted Services 1503 2033 3323 EA 26% Bl 121%
Insurance 308 407 39009 @ 24%x Bl 30%
Joburg Ballet & Orchestra 20 645 20 645 20467 & ox Bl -1%
Arts Alive 8411 8 697 7101 & 3Bl -16%
In-House Productions 17 330 17 054 17429 & -2% E 1%
Hospitality and Catering 17404 16819 17237 B 3% B -1%
General Expenses 33784 36076 38170 6x Bl 13%

The bar chart below depicts the expenditure contribution for the fourth quarter:

4th Quarter Expenditure by

category
17%

General Expenses
Hospitality and Catering [} 5%
in-House Stage Productions [l 6%
Arts Abxe

loburg Ballet [ 6%
Insurance 0%
Contracted Services 0%

Repairs And Maintenance I 2%

Depreciation & Asset Imparment i 1%
Directors and Committee Members | 1%

Employee Related Costs GG 5o

-10% 0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%
m Seriesl

The entity will continue to forge a good relationship between revenue generation and expenditure patterns by
employing prudent financial discipline on expenditure management.

Trading Surplus/Deficit

JCT recorded a trading deficit of R12m for the year against the budgeted breakeven point. The deficit was caused
by the fixed expenditure which was not avoidable despite the closure of theatre activities i.e. the entity
continued to incur salaries, utilities, insurance and contracted services like fleet.

Statement of Financial Position Fourth quarter 2019/20

Cash and cash equivalents down by 21% year on year. Current ratio for the entity is down by 41% year on year
from 1.26:1 to 0.74:1 and below the City’s norm of 1:1, while the solvency ratio has also declined by 39% at
1.21:1 from the 1.98:1 same period last year which is lower than a norm of 2:1, due to the 68% drastic increase
in liabilities particularly payables whilst the totals assets increment is only 2%. Current assets have gone up by
4% year on year while current liabilities has also gone up by 77%. Total assets gone up by 2% year on year while
total liabilities also gone up by 68% year on year.

“
S . ——— ]
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Cash flow results for fourth quarter Financial Year

2020 2019 2018 2017
Cash flows from operating activities - 713950 - 1514617 - 4891272 22982080
Net cash flows from investing activities - 1562556 - 3162075 - 2663247 - 1588971
Cash flows from financing activities - - - - 175304
Opening balance 11052694 15729386 23283903 2 066 098
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 8776188 11052694 15729384 23283903

Cash Balances Cashflow analysis

-

25000 000
Q42018 15000000
e 2017
10000 000 2018
s (D o ) g -
4 L 2020
5000000 Cashflows Netcash Cashflows Opening
Q42020 from  flowsfrom  from balance
operating  investing  financing
activities  activities  activities
5000000 10000000 15000000 20000000 25000000 22020 M2019 B2018 & 2017

Statement on Compliance

There were no unauthorised and irregular expenditure for the period under review.

There were also no payments paid to suppliers over 30 days from receipt of an invoice during the period under
review.

Joburg Ballet
Joburg Ballet submitted its quarter 4 management accounts in line with the Service Level Agreement. The
management accounts reflected a surplus of R152 866 against a deficit budget of R446 462. The entity has R257
336 in the bank account and the tranche for quarter has been released.

| Joburg Ballet Statement of Profit o

Revenue 181 904 275 850 249193 B -3a%x B -27%
External Funding 2537579 2547279 2594069 @l @ ox B 2%
Operating Expenses - 2566617 - 3269591 - 3025691 - 22% - -15%
Operating Loss 152866 - 446462 - 182429 B 134% Bl 184%
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Statement of Financial Position as at end of june Statement of Financial Position as at end of June
r r r r

2020 2019 Variance 2020 2019 Variance
Assets Liabilities
Current assets
Receivables 39884 1433994 I -97% Current Liabilities
Cash and cash equivalents 257 336 241399 @ 7% Payables 1450571 1356642 -7%
297220 1675393 [ -82% 1450571 1356642 Bl -7%
Non current assets
PPE 370055 543664 B -32% Total liabilities 1450571 1356642 B -7%
370055 543664 B -32%
Total assets 667275 2219057 EJ -70% NET Assets - 783296 -1356642 B -42%
Net Assets

Accumulated Surplus - 783 296 862415 [ -191%

Total Net Assets - 783 296 862415 B -191%

AUDIT OPINION TRENDS

The entity has achieved an unqualified audit opinion with no findings for the last 5 years.
Audit Opinion for the past 5 year

FY 2019 20138 2017 2016 2015
Type of opnion Clean Clean Clean Clean Clean

In conclusion

I wish to thank the MMCs for the political leadership and oversight, the Board particularly the Audit and Risk
Committee for its stewardship over the financial management, internal controls and risk management, the EXCO
for the support and guidance over the last nine months, the whole management team and staff at Joburg City
Theatres for their sterling contribution in the financial year.

Chief ﬁl ancial Officer
Joburg Theatre (SOC) Ltd
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CHAPTER TWO: DIRECTOR’S REPORT AND GOVERNANCE

Section 1: Board of directors

JCT has a unitary board and the positions of Chairperson and CEO are distinct and separate. The board consists
of two executive directors, i.e. the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and thirteen
(13) non-executive directors.

With effect from 11 March 2020 and pursuant to the entity’s 19" Annual General Meeting (AGM), the board is
chaired by Mr. Desmond Ndzipho, who is an independent Non-Executive Director and is not an employee of JCT.

The CEO is responsible for the day-to-day management of JCT and the Chairperson does not perform any
executive functionswithin JCT.

The board of directors, as the Accounting Authority of JCT, retains full control of the entity and is the focal point
of corporate governance in the entity.

The board is responsible and accountable to the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality (“the City of
Joburg”), the sole shareholder of JCT, the City’s stakeholders and the citizenry of Johannesburg.

A Service Delivery Agreement (SDA) and a Shareholder Compact regulate the relationship between the board
and the City of Joburg as the Shareholder. The SDA was concluded in accordance with the provisions of the Local
Government: Municipal Systems Act (“the MSA”).

As the Accounting Authority, the board is ultimately responsible for the performance of JCT and all its
employees, including ensuring compliance with all applicable legislation and policies.

On at least a quarterly, bi-annual and annual basis, the board reviews the entity’s performance. The board meets
at least quarterly and provides quarterly, mid-year as well as annual reports on the entity’s performance and
service delivery to the parent municipality as prescribed in the SDA, the MFMA and the MSA.

Members of the board have unlimited access to the company’s Executive Management through the CEO.

The Company Secretary is central source of guidance on governance and legal matters for the company as well
as the board and therefore advices the board in discharging its fiduciary duties. In discharging her duties, the
Company Secretary is guided by section 88(1) to (2) of the Companies Act 71 of 2008.

The board is empowered to obtain the advice of independent professionals when the need arises and in
compliance with the MFMA and JCT’s Supply Chain Management policies.

The City’s Group Governance department as mandated by the Shareholder undertakes board evaluation, to
assess the board’s performance, identify strengths and opportunities for improvement.

The entity’s board is constituted as follows:
e Mr. Desmond Ndzipho (Non-Executive Director and Chairperson)
Mr. Tom Mofokeng Non-Executive Director (NED)
Mr. Junior Ramovha (NED)
Mr. Rabone Moripe (NED)
Dr. Mongane Serote (NED)
Mr. Mabutho Sithole (NED)
Mr. Vetman Linda (NED)

_e - =
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Adv. Mbuso Majozi (NED)

Ms. Ashley Hayden (NED)

Mr. Thulani Vincent Langa (NED)

Ms. Thandiwe Gladys Shezi (NED)

Ms. Dineo Sithole (NED)

Mr. Dingane Khesuoe (NED)

e Ms X Nduneni-Ngema (Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director)
e Mr S Mphakathi (Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director).

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of JCT met twice on 14 April and 23 June 2020. At the
meeting, the board considered the following:

° JCT’s 2019/20 mid-year performance assessment report;
. The Fixed Term Contract of the CFO; and
The appeintment of JCF's-CFO.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, there was a delay in conducting the board induction. The board induction took
place on 23 June 2020.

Section 2: Board Committees

JCT has two (2) board sub-committees, being:

e Audit and Risk Committee (ARC); and
¢ Remuneration, Social and Ethics Committee (REMSEC).

The board re-constituted its committees by way of round robin on 19 May 2020 following the AGM held in
March 2020.

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and risk committee (ARC) performs oversight on the management of the entity’s finance and the
functioning of the entity’s accounting controls as delegated by the board in the ARC terms of references, the
MFMA and other applicable legislated prescriptions.

For the period under review, the committee did not meet due to the challenges posed by the COVID-19
pandemic; in particular, the theatres were closed.

The ARC has approved terms of references, which empower the committee to oversee the quality, integrity and
reliability of the company’s risk management function. As a result, the ARC reviews and assesses the integrity
and the quality of risk control systems and ensures that risk policies and strategies are effectively managed.

In addition, the ARC is responsible for monitoring compliance with applicable legislation and the requirements
of regulatory authorities; overseeing matters relating to financial accounting, accounting policies, reporting, risk
management and disclosure as well as reviewing and approving external audit plans, findings, problems, reports
and fees.

The ARC consists of the following members:
e Ms. Chrystal Cape-Independent Audit Committee (IAC) member and Chairperson

e Ms. Nompumelelo Mkhize-IAC member;
e Mr. Frank Masibi — IAC Member;
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Ms. Ashley Hayden
Mr. Vetman Sizwe Linda
Mr. Rabone Moripe; and
Adv. Mbuso Majozi

Remuneration, Social and Ethics Committee

REMSEC is a committee responsible for performing oversight on the company’s human resources
management and labour matters. In addition, REMSEC monitors the entity’s performance in its
operational environment, health and public safety and performs oversight on the entity’s social and
economic development and good corporate citizenship responsibilities.

The following non-executive directors comprise REMSEC:
e Ms. Diieo Sitole —Non-Executive Director (NEDj and Chairpeison
Mr. Tom Mofokeng-NED
Mr. Dingane Khesuoe-NED
Mr. Mabutho Sithole-NED
Dr. Mongane Serote-NED
Ms. Thandiwe Shezi-NED
Mr. Junior Ramovha-NED

For the period under review, REMSEC did not meet:

The table below outlines the remuneration and attendances at Board meetings and board committees for the
4™ quarter:

_—— .
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The table below discloses the 2019/20 remuneration of executive management:

The table below discloses the 2019/20 remuneration of executive management:

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION: APRIL TO JUNE 2020)
DETAILS
Allowances &

No. Name Basic Salary | Contributions Other Bonus / Fees| TOTAL
1 [X. Nduneni-Ngema (Chief Executive Officer) 555 450 37030 - - 592 480
2 |B. Mashika (Chief Operations Officer) 359 666 101136 43981 - 504 783
3 |S. Mphakathi (Chief Financial Officer) 380 689 109 302 49 846 - 539 837
4 |P. Maduka (Company Secretary) 285 975 2821 3000 - 291796
5 |Executive Producer - Vacant - - - - 0

TOTAL 1581 780 250 289 96 827 0| 1 928 896

Section 4: Company Secretarial Function

The Company Secretary (CS) has a dual responsibility, one of governance and the other one of being the
company’s in-house legal counsel. The CS is charged with the responsibility to uphold the governance affairs of
the entity and is contractually responsible for the management of legal matters within the entity. The CS’s
governance responsibilities are codified under section 88(1) and (2) of the Companies Act.

Reporting on compliance with the MFMA, MSA and Priority Regulations by the Board of Directors

JCT’s monitors compliance through a Combined Assurance model framework. Compliance with applicable
legislation such as the MFMA, Companies Act and Occupational Health and Safety is assessed on a monthly and
quarterly basis by the City’s group compliance department, which falls under GRAS.

GRAS has developed a priority regulatory register, which identifies the priority legislative provisions, and
regulatory requirements, which JCT monitors compliance against.

Compliance with the MFMA Circular 65 (relating to the payment of suppliers within 30 days) and 68 (relating to
the incurring of unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure) for the period April and June 2020
was reported on by the entity and the requisite report submitted to GRAS for assessment. Following the
assessment by GRAS, as the entity’s Internal Auditors, GRAS will report accordingly to ColJ structures.

The table below depicts the entity’s percentage performance against its compliance regulatory register:

" IDP Result Area Key Key 2019/20 | 2020/21 | 2019/20 Performance
Programme Performance Intervention Target Target
Indicator Target | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
100% | 100% | 100% | 100%
Enhance our | Improved Percentage Strategy 100% 100% Actual | 89% | 899% | 93% 93%
financial financial compliance improvement
sustainability | planning and | with relevant | plans
project legislation and
management | policy
prescripts

NOTE: This KP! is a new KPI, which the company commenced measuring at an organisational level in this 2019/20
financial year. Therefore, there is no baseline for the KPI.

— e — — — e ————— e -——————————————
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Section 5: Risk Management and internal controls

ICT management monitors risk management and internal controls on a daily basis through execution of duties
in operation and risk management is a standing agenda item on the Executive Committee (EXCO)’s weekly
meetings and Management Committee (MANCO)'s monthly meetings.

Strategic and operational risk registers are presented to the Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) and board at their
quarterly meetings, for discussion, inputs and oversight by the board.

Strategic and operational risk registers are on a quarterly basis considered by the Audit and Risk Committee
(ARC) and board. The board approved the 2020/21 strategic risk register in this quarter.

Reporting on compliance with the MFMA and MSA by the Board of directors

Through the entity’s delegations of authority policy, the board has entrusted the CEO with the responsibility to
ensure sound financial planning and management, essential to improve service delivery and sustain the business
into the future, as per the MFMA,

On a monthly basis, the entity reports to the City (through GRAS) on compliance with the provisions of Circular
68 and Circular 65 of the MFMA. A summary of these reports are illustrated in the entity’s quarterly performance
assessment reports which management present to the board at its quarterly meetings for oversight.

The performance reporting on the Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) is done to the
Mayoral Committee and Council on a quarterly basis.

During the period under review, regular reporting requirements to Council in accordance with the MSA, were
fulfilled.

The effective risk management is integral to the company’s objective of consistently adding value to the
business. Management is continuously developing and enhancing its risk and control procedures to improve the
mechanisms for identifying and monitoring risks.

Operating risk is the potential for loss to occur through a breakdown in control information, business processes
and compliance systems. Key policies and procedures are in place to manage operating risk involving segregation
of duties, transaction authorisation, supervision, monitoring and financial and managerial reporting.

During the period under review JCT has reviewed, monitored and reported on risks focusing on three main
categories. Those categories are the strategic risks and operational risks, the emerging risks and, the ICT risks.
The entity still faces significant risks both the strategic risk register and the emerging risks identified. Further
actions to mitigate these risks have been put in place and are implemented and monitored continuously.

In order to meet its responsibility with respect to providing reliable financial information, Joburg City Theatres
maintains financial and operational systems of internal controls. These controls are designed to provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are concluded in accordance with management authority, that the
assets are adequately protected against material loss or unauthorised acquisition, use or disposal and those
transactions are properly authorised and recorded. The system includes a documented organisation structure
and areas of responsibility, established policies and procedures, including a Code of Ethics to foster a strong
ethical climate, which are communicated to the parent municipality. It also includes the careful selection,
training and development of people.

P ——— e e e e e e ——
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Internal auditors monitor the operation of the internal control systems and report findings and
recommendations to management, the audit committee and the board of directors. Corrective actions are
taken to address control deficiencies and other opportunities for improving the system as they are defined. The
board of directors, operating through its audit and risk committee, provides supervisions of the financial
reporting process and internal control systems. There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system
of internal control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding of controls.

Accordingly, even an effective internal control system can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation and the safeguarding of assets. Furthermore, the effectiveness of internal
control systems can change with circumstances.

Risk Register

The management of risks is the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer who carries out this duty with the
theatre’s management team. The Finance iManager is the company’s Risk Champion. The compaiy’s Risks
Register is reviewed monthly by EXCO and quarterly at each meeting of the Audit and Risk Committee and the
Board of directors.

The tables on the following pages spell out the areas of both the strategic and operational risks identified by the
company for the 2019/20 financial year, including risk control measures:

e s s —me e
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Reporting on compliance with the MFMA and MSA by the Board of directors

The board works closely with management and the City in the entity’s planning and performance management
matters.

Through the entity’s delegations of authority policy, the board has entrusted the CEO with the responsibility to
ensure sound financial planning and management, essential to improve service delivery and sustain the business
into the future, as per the MFMA.

On a monthly basis, the entity reports to the City (through GRAS) on compliance with the provisions of Circular
68 and Circular 65 of the MFMA. These reports are presented to the board at its quarterly meetings for oversight.

ihe periormance reporting on the Service Delivery and Budget implementation Plan (SDBIiPjis done to the
Mayoral Committee and Council on a quarterly basis.

During the period under review, regular reporting requirements to Council in accordance with the MSA, were
fulfilled.

Section 6: Sustainability Report
Sustainability Vision

One of JCT’s strategic objectives and key focus area is to ensure the entity remains sustainable by balancing the
imperative for revenue generation with socio-economic development.

The entity’s operations are broadly underpinned by the concept of long term sustainability. As a result, issues
of health, safety and security have been elevated by the organisation to ensure that the City’s theatres i.e.
Joburg, Roodepoort and Soweto Theatres remain the entertainment destination of choice. On a quarterly basis,
issues of health, safety and security are thoroughly interrogated by REMSEC and the ARC; and enhancements to
environmental sustainability recommended.

By the same token, skills development is a priority for JCT and to drive this training initiative, JCT concludes a
Workplace Skills Plan on an annual basis.

REMSEC considered the possibility of introducing a more coordinated approach that could facilitate the effective
management of ethics performance in the organisation. The intention of this initiative is to, going forward,
identify through an ethics risk assessment, specific ethics risks and opportunities in relation to the company's
operating context and effective ways of advancing ethics management. By so doing, the organisation will be
elevating its business as socially and environmentally responsible and the sustainability of JCT will be enhanced.

Stakeholders Report

JCT values continuous engagement with its stakeholders, who include individuals, groups of individuals and
organisations. The entity supports continuous accessibility, education and facilitates partnerships as well as co-
production opportunities.

e ——————
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JCT’s stakeholders are the individuals, groups of individuals or organisations that affect and are affected by the
entity’s activities, products or services and associated performance.

JCT’s board and management are dedicated in ensuring that JCT remains a responsible corporate citizen in a
manner that balances the interests of all stakeholders.

As such, the entity supports improved accessibility, education and facilitates partnerships as well as co-

production opportunities.

In delivering on the JCT mandate, the entity recognises the following financial, internal and external capabilities
as enablers to achieving its mission of producing and presenting innovative and relevant indigenous and
international entertainment programmes that promote multiculturalism, diversity and social cohesion:

Applicable Stakeholder

Stakeholder Reporting Requirements & Manner of Engagement

Government Departments, Local
Government and COJ

JCT is committed to delivering its services with care, empathy and
concern for the well-being of the entity’s stakeholders. This is in line with
the entity’s values of Dignity, Ubuntu, Professionalism and Agility.

Artists, practitioners and
Organised  Performing  Arts
bodies

Opportunities are continuously provided to artists in support of creating
work, performing, increasing accessibility, facilitating partnerships and
co-production opportunities, incubating youth projects and addressing
youth unemployment.

JCT is an active member of PANSA, the Performing Arts Network of South
Africa.

Funding Partners / Business

JCT is always identifying strategic partners to support the delivery of JCT’s
mandate. During the period under review JCT partnered with the City’s
Department of Arts and Culture in delivering the Arts Alive Festival.

Professional service providers,
contractors and suppliers

Continuous effort is put towards strengthening enterprise development
and support, improving contract negotiation, management and
reporting, compliance to fair supply chain management processes and
timeous payment for work done as legislated.

Media

JCT’s marketing strategy for the company provides guidance on
enhancing communication of programmes and opportunities, proactively
packaging and communicating project initiative and telling good stories
of the programmes and creating brand awareness. The strategy is
regularly reviewed to accommodate developing trends in the industry,
where possible.

Patrons / General Public

During the 3™ quarter, JCT continued with staging programs that aimed
to satisfy the interests of the diverse residents within the City of Joburg.

Board

JCT continued to ensure sound performance reporting and sound
corporate governance during the 3" quarter. Although the board have
not had a meeting after the AGM, communication with the board has
been going on online.

In addition, JCT continued to support integration and collaboration across
all business units and COJ.

Employees

JCT values its employees as a key human resource asset which makes
possible service delivery and the attainment of the entity’s strategic
objectives.

The entity’s human resources policies and practices are in place primarily
to acknowledge and reinforce the strategic importance of human
resources. There was a staff meeting during this quarter to inform
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Applicable Stakeholder Stakeholder Reporting Requirements & Manner of Engagement

employees on organisational performance, challenges in the entity and
the economic outlook. Employees were also engaged on their concerns
and how they could collaborate with management in achieving JCT’s
strategic objectives.

Skills development and training interventions are offered to staff within
the organisation and details of the training that took place during the
quarter are reported under the Human Resources Management section
of this report.

JCT’s policies and procedure are in place to provide clear guidelines on rights and obligations as well as to
manage expectations between the employer and the employees. The company policies are continuously
reviewed in line with operations, new legislation and recommended best practices.

Section 7: Anticorruption and Fraud

For the period under review, no incidents of corruption and fraud were identified or reported.

JCT’s has a culture of zero tolerance to fraud and corruption in all its activities and this commitment is reflected
in the entity’s Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption policy. The policy is modelled on the need to deter, prevent,
detect, react to, and reduce the likelihood of fraud, corruption, theft and maladministration.

JCT has an anti-fraud and anti-corruption policy in place which contains the following objectives:

a) To prevent fraud, enhance the entity’s governance and internal controls, maintain integrity in the
entity’s operations, establish procedures and protections that allow JCT employees and members of the
public to act on suspected fraud and/or corruption with potentially adverse ramifications to the entity
and to achieve the legitimate business objectives of the entity for the benefit of the Shareholder and
JCT’s stakeholders.

b) To develop and foster a climate within JCT where all employees strive for the ultimate eradication of
fraud, corruption, theft and maladministration by means of the application of a full spectrum of both
pro-active and re-active measures at their disposal.

c) To set down the stance of JCT to fraud as well as to re-enforce existing systems, policies, rules and
regulations of JCT aimed at deterring, preventing, detecting, reacting to, and reducing the likelihood of
fraud, corruption, theft and maladministration.

d) To confirm JCT’s commitment to a culture of zero tolerance to fraud and corruption in all its activities.

As part of the entity’s fraud prevention strategy, the entity conducts regular ethics awareness workshops.
Section 8: ICT Governance

JCT has an established Information and Technology Steering Committee, which is responsible for recommending
effective performance management mechanisms on Technology and Information governance to the entity’s

EXCO.

During this the period under review, the ARC recommended that management should review the IT policy to
ensure its adequacy in as far as JCT's technology and information resources in support of the achievement of
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the organisation's strategic objectives, are concerned. Accordingly, the policy was reviewed to ensure that the
entity is secure from threats associated with the use of information and technology.

In line with King IV, information technology (IT) governance forms an important part of Joburg City Theatre’s
{(JCT) governance structures, policies and procedures. It is crucial that the current and future use of ICT is
carefully directed and controlled in order for ICT to be aligned to the business goals of the entity.

ICT governance is not just an IT problem; it is at its broadest sense part of the overali governance of an entity
with specific focus on improving the management and control of ICT for the benefit of stakeholders. ICT
governance spans the culture, organisation, policy and practises that provide for the management and control
of ICT. Creating an environment where ICT governance is an integral part of corporate governance is critical in
ensuring alignment with business objectives, value delivery, accountability, risk management and overall
performance management.

For the effective implementation of IT governance, and in order to improve the value of governance and
sustainability, Joburg City Theatres aligns the strategic framework and IT policy in the following objectives:

Improved value and strategic delivery:
Upgrading of Stage Machinery at Joburg Theatre (long term project 2017 — 2021)

The building department, in consultation with the contractor, schedules downtime around the stage machinery
to ensure business continuity. The entire project is ongoing and monitored by the building department’s
technical staff. Replacement of equipment related to the machinery is on track and the project is making
progress. Technical staff was scheduled to assist the supplier, where needed, during the lockdown period and
the upgrade work continued.

COJ A647 SAP Business Transformation Programme

JCT has confirmed technical specifications with the COJ project team, in preparation for SAP implementation
and received confirmation that all systems needed to be operating Windows 10. During the first two quarters,
system audits were conducted on all devices to determine the scope of the upgrades required. COJ allocated
Windows 10 licenses to allow upgrades to be installed. The majority of upgrades were completed during Quarter
3.

SAP — Connectivity to COJ

Following recommendations from the CIO Forum, Joburg City Theatres engaged with MTC in order to get
connectivity to the SAP environment. This connectivity will in turn address business continuity in item 7 below.
Internal delays have been experienced with MTC as SCM documentation is required to satisfy SCM processes.
Assistance from Cyril Baloyi (GTO) and Network Operations Head at GICT, Phumulani Coka, for assistance to
speed up the process.

Capex 2019/20

The tender process to procure larger NAS devices for Joburg Theatre in quarter 3 was delayed by the unexpected
lockdown. The currency exchange rates fluctuated to such an extent whereby suppliers could not honour the
original bid costs. JCT had to re-advertise the tender during Q4. The NAS bid was allocated to a supplier during
Q4.
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The IT Capex allocation for 2019-2020 has been successfully allocated.

Readiness for compliance legislation:

The Auditor General had no significant IT Findings during the 2018 — 2019 audit. This was a significant
improvement over the previous year’s audit.

Internal audit needed to be addresses and rectified and now viewed as resolved.

e IT Policy awareness and training: JCT hosted IT policy awareness workshops for staff at all three
Theatres, however the COVID-19 lockdown and processes to follow will determined how to safely
continue with awareness and training sessions for all staff.

e The environmental server room upgrades that were made to the server room, which included fireproof
doors, temperature sensors, first-aid kit and emergency contact lists. The option to raised flooring was
negated by lifting equipment up on platforms and raising equipment within cabinets is completed and
considered to be resolved.

e Minorinconsistencies between the IT Policy and the DR plan were highlighted. The two documents were
aligned. However on completion of the SAP and MTC implementation the DR plan will need to be revised
as major changes in regards to Accounting platforms and network architecture will be implemented.

e Unattended computer systems did not automatically sign out users when inactive. A Group Policy
needed to be created to sign out users when inactive. An Active Directory Group Policy has been
implemented and applied it to all users. The rollout of the policy was problematic in regards to Windows
7 systems. With the Windows 10 licensing acquired from COJ, Windows 7 systems are in process of being
replaced or upgraded to Windows 10. Joburg Theatre and Soweto Theatre’s upgrades are completed.
Due to the COVID-19 lockdown upgrades to Roodepoort Theatre’s PC's will need to be scheduled to a
later date.

Business and technology strategies

Software Licensing

Procurement of software licensing for Microsoft Products proved to be difficult for JCT as Open License
agreements were subjected to expiration dates. JCT now makes use of the Enterprise license agreements
between COJ and Microsoft. JCT will continue to make use of the agreement to align JCT with the business
strategy adopted by COJ. The Windows 10 upgrades to Joburg Theatre and Soweto Theatre has been rolled out.
The upgrade process is almost completed. JCT is waiting for the green light for lifting of lockdown restriction.

Migration onto new platforms — centralized management

The ability to apply group policy down onto each system was time consuming across three theatres as resources
needed to be dispatched. No dashboard view of the JCT environment was possible as user accounts sit on
different servers. Centralized system management needed to be implemented to make administration of IT
systems easier and to enable detection of system events more organized under one controller.

The old systems at the theatres became problematic as end of life and aged hardware meant some issues could
not be resolved due to the lack of continued support from suppliers. With the adoption of centralized
management, branch servers, also known as Active Directory replication server, replaced the old hardware and
software. Better backup solutions could be implemented, thereby moving away from legacy systems.

Centralized Management Lowers Costs

Having the ability to set login and security parameters for all devices from a central hub reduce the time and
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cost of having to secure and configure each device individually. With the migration of Roodepoort Theatre users
onto the JICT domain controller, the management of users’ accounts proved more effective.

Migration Challenges

Soweto Theatre’s migration of user accounts onto the JCT platforms was on track to be completed in Q3,
however COVID-19 Lockdown restriction is now delaying the migration of user accounts. JCT will continue to
adhere to regulations and advice enforced by government during this period. In Q3 Soweto Theatre’s backup
power system was problematic but this has since been upgraded to accommodate continuous outages.

Soweto Theatre’s backup power system will be upgraded to accommodate the switchover process and to
mitigate continuous outages.

The Roodepoort Theatre user migration was completed during the first quarter and was on track with planned
schedules.

The continuous presence of load shedding does present a risk to the smooth functionality of equipment. Faulty
power backup systems were identified during this period and continuous maintenance was conducted to ensure
business continuity and to maintain server integrity. External outages on equipment outside of the JCT
environment may prove problematic if load shedding continues.

Equipment at Joburg Theatre stayed on during the outages and servers performed optimally during load
shedding schedules.

Risk management — Internet Security

Internet Gateway devices (Firewalls) manage internet security. Firewalls are deployed at all three theatres to
take care of port security and intrusion prevention. In line with the recent COJ breach, and the description of
the breach as provided by the COJ CIO forum, ICT reviewed their security firewalls. One of the critical changes
was to ensure that remote management of the firewalls is disabled. The username and passwords on the
firewalls are not the same as the credentials used on the Active Directory servers and the firmware versions are
all up to date. Although the COJ CIO forum gave some insight into the method used by the attackers to gain
access, which did not include a virus or ransomware. JCT still applies Intrusion Prevention, Geo-IP Filter and
Gateway Anti-Virus protection.

Additional software modules were implemented to detect and prevent ransomware attacks. When viruses or
PUAs are detected, system administrators deal with the situation on an ongoing basis to prevent possible
vulnerabilities created by such detections.

In addition, JCT upgraded 99% of Joburg Theatre and Soweto Theatre’s Windows 7 systems to Windows 10. The
remaining Windows 7 systems at Roodepoort Theatre will be upgraded. The restrictions on staff movement due
to the Covid-19 pandemic will delay the last remaining upgrades.

Business continuity

JCT implemented the latest virtualized systems theologies, which by design enables server virtualization and
reduces the dependency of legacy hardware architecture and reduces hardware costs. However, the need for
an offsite datacentre is still required as our current backup and replication strategy between Primary and Backup
server needs to be offsite.

The Joburg Theatre complex is a large structure and backup server and Primary servers are far removed from
one another, but within the same building. For business continuity, the current situation needs to change.
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Challenges

Datacentre: As an audit requirement, a datacentre must be allocated 15 kilometres away from the primary site.
In the case of the COJ datacentre situated in Martindale, its current location is just less than 8 kilometres away
from the Joburg Theatre.

Connectivity: In order to move our backup server offsite we need a dedicated connection between the Primary
and the Backup server, which in turn needs to allow large amounts of data transfer between servers and
unimpeded by other traffic, therefore our current internet connectivity will not be sufficient for this purpose.

Possible Solutions

Service Level Agreement with Metro Trading Company

JCI engaged with MTC in regards to the VPN and data centre requirement. MTC presented costing that was
approved by the IT Steering Committee. The proposal will be signed by ICT and sent back to MTC to commence
work. The proposal will make provision for JCT to have connectivity to the SAP environment. Due to the latest
Covid-19 developments, the signing of the SLA and installing the network infrastructure will be delayed.

If this is the case, alternative solutions will need to be explored and in some business environments, a cold Site
could be considered. A cold site is a business location that is used for backup in the event of a disruptive
operational disaster at the normal business site. A case can be made to use Roodepoort Theatre as the cold site
and move the backup server to Roodepoort Theatre. Dedicated connections between sites will still need to be
established to allow backup data to be transferred between servers, which will also incur additional monthly
expenses. JCT is experiencing long delayed responses from MTC for the completion of the project with MTC,
due to COVID-19 and the extended delays in communications with MTC.

Section 9: Compliance with Laws and Regulations

To ensure accountability and governance arrangements are in place, Section 121(2) (c) of the MFMA supports
the requirements of Section 18(1) (d) of the MSA: information on matters of governance should be
communicated to communities. This should, according to Sections 65(1) (a) of the MFMA and 46 of the MSA be
undertaken through the compilation and publication of the Annual Report. The purpose of such an annual report
is to promote accountability to communities for decisions taken by the Council and matters relating to
administrative structures, throughout a financial year.

The board of directors embraces the principles of corporate governance and considers these as the underlying
philosophy in creating organisation excellence at all levels within JCT. The board of directors and the Executives
recognise and are committed to the principles of openness, integrity and accountability advocated by the Code
of Corporate Practices and Conduct in the King Report. The board remains steadfast in maintaining high
standards of corporate governance and implementing corporate governance principles, policies and practices.

Through this process, the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality as a sole shareholder and other
stakeholders may derive assurance that the entity is being ethically managed according to prudently determined
risk parameters in compliance with generally accepted corporate practices. Monitoring the entity’s compliance
with King Code on Corporate Governance forms part of the mandate of the COJ group audit committee. The
board is satisfied that the company has complied with all legislation relevant to or affecting the company, as
well as all regulations and codes of practice.

Compliance reporting is assessed on a monthly and quarterly basis by the City’s Group Risk and Assurance

Services’ (GRAS) compliance division.
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On a quarterly basis, the entity reports to the ARC, Board and the City (through GRAS) on compliance with the
priority regulatory register, which is a tool identifying the MFMA, the Companies Act and the Occupational
Health and Safety Act and Regulations (85 of 1993) and (181 of 1993) as the primary compliance pieces of
legislation for purposes of reporting.

In addition, a corporate governance checklist in terms of King VI and compliance against the checklist was for
the first time developed and reported on in the entity’s draft annual report.

Statement of Compliance

The board is responsible for ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and adheres to binding rules,
codes and standards.

The board is committed to good corporate governance, which promotes the interests of all JCT stakeholders,
upholds the princioles of accountability, effectiveness. transparency, efficiency and public confidence in the
entity’s operations.

Accordingly, the board has established corporate governance instruments which provide a framework for the
effective governance of the company and which comply with the laws and regulations applicable to JCT.

JCT strives for the highest standards of corporate governance as adopted in King IV Report. The Board of
directors has incorporated the City of Johannesburg’s Corporate Governance Protocol (the Protocol) in its Board
Charter, which inter alia regulates its relationship with the City of Johannesburg as its sole shareholder and
parent municipality in the interest of good corporate governance and good ethics.

The Protocol is premised on the principles enunciated in the King Report for Corporate Governance for South
Africa. The Company steadfastly consolidated its position in respect of adherence to the King IV report on
Corporate Governance. JCT’s practices are, in most material instances, in line with the principles set out in the
King IV Report. Ongoing steps are however taken to align practices with the Report’s recommendations and the
Board continually reviews progress to ensure that the company improves its Corporate Governance.

Compliance is an integral part of good governance, providing assurance on the effectiveness of the control
environment through the Audit and Risk Committee.

Subsidiaries or associations with other companies including trusts
There are no subsidiaries or trusts in which Joburg City Theatres is a participant.
Timeous notification with respect to resolutions to its members

Minutes of the meetings of the Board of directors and its subcommittees - including resolutions - are to be
circulated to members of the Board within 21 days following a meeting.

Financial Irregularities

No financial irregularities were reported in the period under review.

Report on Resolutions passed with the Registrar of Companies beyond expected time frame

There have been no resolutions passed with the Registrar of Companies beyond the expected time frame in the
period under review.

Report of the documentation procedures and processes

Minutes and appropriate minute books are kept for all meetings of the Board of directors and subcommittees.
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Internal Audit Function

JCT outsourced its internal audit function in terms of section 165 (3) of the MFMA to the Group Risk and
Assurance Services GRAS from the shareholder. GRAS has a specific mandate from the Audit and Risk Committee
and independently appraises the adequacy and effectiveness of the company’s systems, financial internal
controls and accounting records, reporting its findings to the Auditor General as well as the Audit & Risk
Committee. GRAS interacts with the Chief Financial Officer and reports to the Audit and Risk Committee on a
functional basis and has direct access to the Chairperson of the Board.

The Joburg City Theatres’ internal audit coverage plan is based on risk assessment performed at each operating
unit. The coverage plan is updated annually, based on the risk assessment and results of the audit work
performed.

Corporate Ethics and Organisational Integrity
Code of Ethics

The board provides effective leadership based on a principled foundation and the entity subscribes to high
ethical standards. Responsible leadership, characterised by the values of responsibility, accountability, fairness
and transparency, has been a defining characteristic of the entity since the company’s establishment in 2000.

The fundamental objective has always been to do business ethically while building a sustainable company that
recognises the short- and long-term impact of its activities on the economy, society and the environment. in its
deliberations, decisions and actions, the board is sensitive to the legitimate interests and expectations of the
company’s stakeholders.

The company has a Code of Conduct (‘the Code”) which has been fully endorsed by the Board and applies to all
directors and employees. The Code is regularly reviewed and updated as required to ensure it reflects the
highest standards of behaviour and professionalism.

Upon commencement of employment, all new employees receive a contract of employment and a Policies and
Procedures Manual and sign acknowledgment of receipt of both documents. The contract of employment
contains clauses referring to the Code of Conduct, as well as other Policies and Procedures applicable to all
employees. A copy of the signed contract, together with a document stating that the employee has received
the Policies and Procedures Manual, is kept on the individual’s personnel files.

The Policies and Procedures Manual is updated on a regular basis by the Governance department in consultation
with other departments. The updated policies are communicated with management as well as all employees;
thereafter all employees receive copies of the updated policies and sign an acknowledgement of receipt.

It is the responsibility of the theatre’s heads of departments (HODs) to monitor compliance with the Company’s
Code of Conduct in conjunction with the Human Resources Manager. Employees committing a breach of the
Company’s Code of Conduct are dealt with in a fair and consistent manner by management, in accordance with
the Disciplinary Code and Procedures. Joburg City Theatres service providers, suppliers and trade partners are
also subject to the Code. It is the opinion of the Board of directors that the company complies with the highest
ethical standards in all matters of business.

In terms of the Code of Conduct and Ethics implementation plan mechanisms are being developed to verify
observance of code and make it known within JCT. After adoption, the code was sent to all employees in
electronic and hard copy formats and Mr Makhaola Ndebele was appointed as ethics officer for the company
and is responsible for ensuring compliance and creating innovative ethics training formats, and setting up ethics
help line amongst other responsibilities. Ethics remain a standing agenda item in the Remuneration, Social and
Ethics committee meetings to monitor adherence to the Code.
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Register of Directors interest in contracts

Directors of the company are continuously advised to declare any interests they hold in any contracts that the
company might enter into. To this end the directors are supplied with a form on which to declare their interests
and declared interests are then entered into the company register. There has not been any material interest
declared as at the date of this report.

Report on the prohibition of disposal of assets contained in Section 115 of the Companies Act
No assets as contained in Section 115 were disposed.

Compliance Monitoring and Reporting

The Joburg City Theatres has established and maintains a system of risk management in aceordance with the
provisions of the Municipal Finance Management Act, the King IV report on Corporate Governance and Risk
Management Standards as applicable.

Oversight over the governance and management of risk in Joburg City Theatres is carried out by the Audit and
Risk Committee which is a committee of the Board of Directors. The Audit and Risk Committee meets on a
quarterly basis (or as regularly as may be agreed between the Board and the Committee) and operates in
accordance with an approved term of reference.

Risk Management Framework and Policy and the Compliance Advisory and Assurance Framework
e The entity is using Group Risk Management Framework and Policy.

¢ Similarly, the ME’s Compliance Framework is aligned to the CoJ Group Compliance Advisory and Assurance
Framework.

e The Risk Management Framework and the Compliance Monitoring Framework are reviewed annually.
Annual Risk Management Plan

The Annual Risk Management and combined assurance Plan for the current financial year 2019/20 was reviewed
and approved at the meeting held in July 2019 by the Audit and Risk Committee and submitted to COJ’s Group
Risk. The Committee oversees progress on the implementation of the annual plan at each quarterly meeting
and has confirmed the entity’s plan is aligned to the City’s Group Risk.

As at end of the period under review, the progress against the plan was as follows:

Activity % completed
Operational Risk Register Monitoring 100% and or fully implemented
Strategic Risk Register Monitoring 100% and or fully implemented

Quarterly Risk Management Status Update

The Audit and Risk Committee confirms that the Committee has reviewed the Strategic risk profile of the ME,
ensuring that these are aligned to the City-wide top strategic risks as applicable.

Joburg City Theatres experienced the following significant highlights from a risk management perspective:
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A coronavirus has been identified in China (Wuhan City), and was initially known as 2019 Novel Coronavirus
(2019-nCoV). The case was reported on December 31st, 2019, and confirmation of the coronavirus
identification occurred on January 7th, 2020. Formally, the disease is now known as coronavirus disease or
COVID-19. The virus causing the disease is known as "severe acute respiratory syndrome coronavirus 2"
(SARS-CoV-2).

The residual risk rating remains high as the disease is still spreading rapidly across the country, and the country
is yet to reach its peak. The theatres remained closed throughout the quarter, as one of government’s measures
to curb the spread of the virus.

During this period the theatre has ensured that all staff conducting deliveries have face masks to eliminate their
coughing or sneezing on people & to limit the intake of germs from the atmosphere when in contact with other
people.

Constant use of hand sanitizer, and sanitizing the credit card devices after every use will decrease the spread of
the virus. All employees that have been brought back to work are working in separate areas / sections and have
very limited contact with each other. Call centre employees are based in separate offices whose only interaction
with others are when the meet the cashier to wring up the order.

The separation between them when they do interact is 2m. In order to eliminate the movement of the printed
till slip, the delivery person will take a picture of the bill to show to the customer for approval of payment.

Countrywide implementation of load shedding by the state power utility (Eskom):

The residual risk rating remains high due to lack of alternative power generation in Joburg Theatre and Soweto
Theatre leading to either cancellation of shows or no bookings.

Progress on implementation per action plan— Management is continuously engaging and negotiating with City
Power to conveniently schedule load shedding. Management is also lobbying shareholder to allocate additional
CAPEX for the generators and/or alternative power source for JT and ST urgently.

Obsolete and/or outdated stage machinery and equipment:

The residual risk rating remains moderate until the project has been fully completed. The residual risk rating
remains high due to inadequate capex budget. Old stage machinery becomes no longer usable. Stage machinery
has reached its end of life and needs urgent replacement.

Progress on implementation per action plan— The project is a multiyear project which will be completed on
August 2020. About R21m has been spent on this project in the last three financial years (2017/18, 2018/19 &
2019/20).

Inadequate funding to support youth development programmes:

The theatre is unable to pay the market rate for facilitators. This result in less youth trained.

Progress on implementation per action plan—The entity has negotiated lower rates with facilitators and the use
of volunteers in the industry is another way the entity has used in the interim. JCT is also in partnership with
WITS for the enrolment of Applied Performing Arts and Arts Management (APAAM) and Market Theatre.
Limited programmes available for newly trained Arts Practitioners

Limited in-house production to absorb newly trained practitioners.

Progress on implementation per action plan -JCT is in partnership with WITS for the enrolment of Applied
Performing Arts and Arts Management (APAAM), there are also weekly drama workshops and interns are placed
in key positions on in-house stage productions.

#
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Key positions vacant:

Executive Producer (EP), General Manager —Roodepoort Theatre and Production Manager positions are vacant,
CFO Position

Progress on implementation per action plan — Company structure has been revised and, COO has taken over
the responsibilities of EP on full time basis and CFO has taken over some of the responsibilities of COO and CDM
has been appointed.

Inconsistent attendance at theatre shows:

High cost of productions and the need to recover costs, effect of the country's downgraded economic status,
lack of exposure of potential audiences to the theatre experience, image perceptions of poor security within the
theatre environs, and trying to cater for diverse audience needs.

Progress on imnlementation per action plan - Different pricing structures based on product and venue, offering
a limited number of discounted and/or free tickets to the youth and senior citizens communities, mobile theatre
truck used to access targeted communities as well as diverse and inclusive theatre programme.

Non-compliance with applicable legislation:

Various and dynamic legislative requirements to be complied with. Non-compliance could be detrimental to the
company. Shelving of RCT has been hanging for some time. This poses a challenge of wasteful expenditure. There
is a new requirement to comply with MSCOA.

Progress on implementation per action plan - Regulatory compliance register/ assessment tool monitored by
the Company Secretary. Compliance policy and framework developed and implemented. All pre-deregistration
processes concluded by management. Quarterly reporting to oversight committees on compliance. The
company is already transacting on the MSCOA chart.

Theft, fraud and corruption resulting in financial and non-financial loss:

Conflict of interest, Inadequate segregation of duties / Inadequate or no supervision, Weak internal control
environment - cash handling / administrative procedures, Lack of accountability, Poor work ethics, Greed,
collusion, bribery, Inadequate IT access controls and Inadequate physical security controls.

Progress on implementation per action plan - The Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption policy in place, Fraud
prevention plan, Code of conduct, Segregation of duties, Declaration of interests, Gift register in place and
Remuneration, Social and Ethics Committee, conduct fraud risk assessment and anti-fraud and corruption
awareness campaigns.

Lack of brand architecture (continuous and consistent message management):

Reputation of the Theatre precinct, poor/ bad marketing strategy, inadequate marketing budget as well as lack
of specialised personnel.

Progress on implementation per action plan - Media partnerships, media community management, continuous
brand and productions awareness campaigns, marketing strategy in place and barter exchange deals.

e ———
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Risk transfer — exposures

There were two incidents reported in this quarter under review.

Date of Incident Nature of Lost Claim Number Comments

2019/12/31 Soweto Theatre i JOTH/1219/043260/AAAR X2 Laptops stolen at Soweto Theatre
X2Stolen Laptops i

2019/01/21 Soweto Theatre JOTH/0120/043254/AAR ST GM Nomsa Mazwai laptop Stolen

X1Stolen Laptops i

Compliance Monitoring and Reporting
Lega!l and regulatory compliance

Compliance reporting is assessed on a monthly and quarterly basis by the City’s Group Risk and Assurance
Services’ (GRAS) compliance division.

On a quarterly basis, the entity reports to the ARC, Board and the City (through GRAS) on compliance with the
priority regulatory register, which is a tool identifying the MFMA, the Companies Act and the Occupational
Health and Safety Act and Regulations (85 of 1993) and (181 of 1993) as the primary compliance pieces of
legislation for purposes of reporting.

The entity relies on a Priority Regulatory Register which is a measurement tool adopted by the City of Joburg
group for measuring compliance with various pieces of legislation and regulations. The Priority Regulatory
Register for the entity measures compliance with the Companies Act, the MFMA and the Occupational Health
and Safety Act (OHSA). Compliance per the register is measured on a quarterly basis and where compliance is
claimed, the claim is supported by the relevant evidence for assurance purposes by GRAS.

The results of the compliance register are reported to the ARC and the board on a quarterly basis. By the same
token, on a monthly basis, the entity rates its compliance with Circulars 668 and 65 of the MFMA. Submission
of these reports is done to GRAS for assessment. These reports are also presented to the ARC and the board.
Performance reporting against the entity’s Service Delivery and Budget Implementation Plan (SDBIP) is done to
the Mayoral Committee and Council on a quarterly basis.

For the period under review, regular reporting requirements to Council as prescribed by the MSA were fulfilled.
Priority Legislation

The Entity has established the following mechanisms to monitor compliance with applicable laws and
regulations:

e Compliance Framework and tool

e Compliance SOP (Standard Operating Procedure)

e Compliance Profile Assessment Tool

e Occupational Health and Safety Act and Regulations (85 of 1993)

_— . e —————e e e s ——————
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o Every employer shall provide and maintain, as far as is reasonably practicable, a working environment that
is safe and without risk to the health of his employees.

¢ Municipal Finance Management Act and Regulations Act of 56 of 2003

o The accounting officer of the municipality must submit that information to national treasury, the Auditor
General, and the relevant Provincial Treasury in writing.

e Companies Act

o The Companies Act, 2008 requires all companies to keep accurate and complete accounting records,
which must be kept and be accessible at the company’s registered office.

o All companies (including external companies) and close corporations are required by law to lodge their
annual returns with CIPC within a certain period of time every year. An annual return is a statutory
return in terms of the Companies and Close Corporations Acts and therefore MUST be complied with.
Failure to do so will result in the Commission assuming that the company and/or close corporation is
not doing business or is not intending on doing business in the near future. Non-compiiance with
annual returns may lead to deregistration, which has the effect that the juristic personality is
withdrawn and the company or close corporation ceases to exist.

The Compliance Universe was updated with the following legislative changes:

e None
Circular 68
(i) Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

No incidents of fruitless and wasteful expenditure were identified.

(ii) Unauthorised Expenditure
The Entity identified the following instances of unauthorised expenditure:

No incidents of unauthorised expenditure were identified.

(iii) irregular Expenditure
The Entity identified the following instances of irregular expenditure:

No incidents of irregular expenditure were identified.

(iv) Payments exceeding 30 days of receipt of invoice

The Entity identified the following instances where payments to suppliers were made in excess of 30 days:
No incidents of payments exceeding 30 days were identified.

Combined Assurance Model and Integrated Assurance Reporting

Combined and Integrated Assurance and Oversight

An integrated and combined assurance approach has been adopted for the purposes of maximising assurance
provision and therefore aggregation of assurance outcomes.

_-—e———— e, e e
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Joburg City Theatres Top Strategic risks

The top strategic risk areas for the financial year 2019/20 have been re-evaluated and monitored continuously
during the period under review. This entailed the re-evaluation of the strategic risk landscapes and the
identification of new emerging risks.

The measurement, prioritisation and ranking of the risk exposures has been in accordance with the formally
adopted group risk assessment methodology. The prioritisation of the top risks is to ensure that adequate
assurance resources can be directed to those risks that need more attention of management, and therefore
combined assurance mapping is adequate and effective

Discussion

The consolidation of assurance outcomes is based on the work done as at the end of the period under review
and are summarised herein. The report therefore covers the following:

° strategic risks and residual risk profile for the quarter under review;
o Strategic and operational risk monitoring;
° Strategic risk mapping to the Priorities.

Joburg City Theatres Top Strategic Risks Monitoring

The top strategic risks are monitored continuously and communicated to management on a monthly basis. The
Top Strategic risks are mapped to the Specific priorities focus areas for JCT and have been assigned risk
ownership and action ownership at Departmental level.

The risk and action ownership was agreed to with the Executive Management Team during the risk assessment
workshop. Management is apprised on an-ongoing basis of the progress being made to implement risk
mitigation actions and therefore management of associated risk exposures. For the purposes of monitoring
risks and risk movements, Key Risk Indicators have been identified for each strategic risk area:

Quarterly Risk Management Status Update — Management (Level 1 Assurance)

The Audit and Risk Committee confirms that the Committee has reviewed the Strategic risk profile of the ME,
ensuring that these are aligned to the City-wide top strategic risks as applicable. During the quarter under
review, Joburg City Theatres experienced the following significant highlights from a risk management
perspective:

i) A coronavirus has been identified in China (Wuhan City), and was initially known as 2019 Novel
Coronavirus (2019-nCoV). The case was reported on December 31st, 2019, and confirmation of the
coronavirus identification occurred on January 7th, 2020. Formally, the disease is now known as
coronavirus disease or COVID-19. The virus causing the disease is known as "severe acute respiratory
syndrome coronavirus 2" (SARS-CoV-2).

Progress on implementation per action plan- The residual risk rating remains high as the disease is still
spreading rapidly across the country, and the country is yet to reach its peak. The theatres remained closed
throughout the quarter, as one of government’s measures to curb the spread of the virus. During this period the
theatre has ensured that all staff conducting deliveries have face masks to illuminate their coughing or sneezing
on people & to limit the intake of germs from the atmosphere when in contact with other people. Constant use

_—eeee————— e e ( ———————————————— s =

JCT Fourth Quarter Report 2019/20 Page 61




of hand sanitizer, and sanitizing the credit card devices after every use will decrease the spread of the virus. All
employees that have been brought back to work are working in separate areas / sections and have very limited
contact with each other. Call centre employees are based in separate offices whose only interaction with others
are when the meet the cashier to wring up the order. The separation between them when they do interact is
2m. In order to illuminate the movement of the printed till slip, the delivery person will take a picture of the bill
to show to the customer for approval of payment.

ii) Countrywide implementation of load shedding by the state power utility (Eskom):

The residual risk rating remains high due to lack of alternative power generation in Joburg Theatre and Soweto
Theatre leading to either cancellation of shows or no bookings.

Progress on implementation per action plan— Management is continuously engaging and negotiating with City
Power to conveniently schedule load shedding. Management is also lobbying shareholder to allocate additional
CAPEX for the generators and/or alternative nower source for JT and ST urgently.

iiii) Obsolete and/or outdated stage machinery and equipment:

The residual risk rating remains moderate until the project has been fully completed. The residual risk rating
remains high due to inadequate capex budget. Old stage machinery becomes no longer usable. Stage machinery
has reached its end of life and needs urgent replacement.

Progress on implementation per action plan— The project is a multiyear project which will be completed on
August 2020. About R21m has been spent on this project in the two financial years (2017/18 & 2018/19).

iv) Inadequate funding to support youth development programmes:
The theatre is unable to pay the market rate for facilitators. This result in less youth trained.

Progress on implementation per action plan—-The entity has negotiated lower rates with facilitators and the use
of volunteers in the industry is another way the entity has used in the interim. JCT is also in partnership with
WITS for the enrolment of Applied Performing Arts and Arts Management (APAAM) and Market Theatre.

v) Limited programmes available for newly trained Arts Practitioners
Limited in-house production to absorb newly trained practitioners.

Progress on implementation per action plan -JCT is in partnership with WITS for the enrolment of Applied
Performing Arts and Arts Management (APAAM), there are also weekly drama workshops and interns are placed
in key positions on in-house stage productions.

vi) Key positions vacant:
Executive Producer (EP) & Community Development Manager (CDM) positions vacant

Progress on implementation per action plan — Company structure has been revised and, COO has taken
over the responsibilities of EP on full time basis and CFO has taken over some of the responsibilities of
COO and CDM has been appointed

vii) Inconsistent attendance at theatre shows:

High cost of productions and the need to recover costs, effect of the country's downgraded economic status,
lack of exposure of potential audiences to the theatre experience, image perceptions of poor security within the
theatre environs, and trying to cater for diverse audience needs.

-
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Progress on implementation per action plan - Different pricing structures based on product and venue, offering
a limited number of discounted and/or free tickets to the youth and senior citizens communities, mobile theatre
truck used to access targeted communities as well as diverse and inclusive theatre programme.

viii) Non-compliance with applicable legislation:

Various and dynamic legislative requirements to be complied with. Non-compliance could be detrimental to the
company. Shelving of RCT has been hanging for some time. This poses a challenge of wasteful expenditure. There
is a new requirement to comply with MSCOA.

Progress on implementation per action plan - Regulatory compliance register/ assessment tool monitored by
the Company Secretary. Compliance policy and framework developed and implemented. All pre-deregistration
processes concluded by management. Quarterly reporting to oversight committees on compliance. The
company is already transacting on the MSCOA chart.

ix) Theft, fraud and corruption resulting in financial and non-financial loss:

Conflict of interest, Inadequate segregation of duties / Inadequate or no supervision, Weak internal control
environment - cash handling / administrative procedures, Lack of accountability, Poor work ethics, Greed,
collusion, bribery, Inadequate IT access controls and Inadequate physical security controls.

Progress on implementation per action plan - The Anti-Fraud and Anti-Corruption policy in place, Fraud
prevention plan, Code of conduct, Segregation of duties, Declaration of interests, Gift register in place and
Remuneration, Social and Ethics Committee, conduct fraud risk assessment and anti-fraud and corruption
awareness campaigns.

x) Lack of brand architecture (continuous and consistent message management):

Reputation of the Theatre precinct, poor/ bad marketing strategy, inadequate marketing budget as well as lack
of specialised personnel.

Progress on implementation per action plan - Media partnerships, media community management, continuous
brand and productions awareness campaigns, marketing strategy in place and barter exchange deals.

Quarterly Risk Management Status Update — Group Risk and Assurance Services (Level 2 Assurance)

e  Group Risk Services

Group Risk Services continuously conducts risk assessment of Joburg City Theatres to 5 strategic risks, this entails
assessing the mitigating actions and progress on implementation of action plans. The table below depicts the
Joburg City Theatres risk highlights for the quarter under review based on the assessment conducted by Group
Risk Services.

Risk Description Mitigating actions | Pro.gre§§ on impiementation per
Ref action plan

Aged, obsolete and 1. Fair maintenance of stage machinery. R21m has already been spent in

outdated stage 2. The Council has allocated R16m & 2018/19 on this project

machinery and R30m in budget year 2018/19 and

equipment 2019/20 respectively.

3. The service provider has been
appointed to do the upgrade. R21m has
been spent in 2018/19 on this project.

5. Theatre calendars are aligned with the
project plan

. ]
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at theatre shows

product and venue.

Risk Description Mitigating actions Pr_o'gms;:_b_n' implementation per
Ref action plan
6. Project manager appointed to oversee
the project
2 'A coronavirus has been | 1. Strict safety measures (as per labour Ensure that all staff conducting
identified in China department regulations) is observed. deliveries have face masks to
{(Wuhan City), and was 2. Compliance Officer appointed to illuminate their coughing or
initially known as 2019 moniotor sneezing on people & to limit the
Novel Coronavirus 3. Screening of employee entering office | intake of germs from the
(2019-nCoV). The case 4. Provided workers with flexible work atmosphere when in contact with
was reported on arrangements in situations of sickness or | other people. Constant use of hand
December 31st, 2019, sickness in the family, Protect the sanitizer, and sanitizing the credit
and confirmation of the | workplace against discrimination and card devices after every use will
coronavirus sociai stigma, Support workers coping decrease the spread of the virus. All
identification occurred with stress during COVID-19 outbreak employees that have been brought
on lanuary 7th, 2020. 5. Face masks back to work are working in
Formally, the disease is separate areas / sections and have
now known as very limited contact with each
coronavirus disease or other. Call centre employees are
COVID-19. The virus based in separate offices whose
causing the disease is only interaction with others are
known as "severe acute when the meet the cashier to wring
respiratory syndrome up the order. The separation
coronavirus 2" (SARS- between them when they do
CoV-2). interact is 2m. In order to illuminate
the movement of the printed till
slip, the delivery person will take a
picture of the bill to show to the
customer for approval of payment.
3 Countrywide 1. Eskom is experiencing a shortage of 1. JT continuously engages and
implementation of load | capacity due to a number of generating negotiates with City Power to
shedding by the state units still out of service due to conveniently schedule load
power utility (Eskom) breakdowns. The situation remains tight | shedding.
and volatile Eskom might implement 2. ST has an emergency generator
further load shedding in the year should | for lighting
the situation deteriorate. 3. RT has a generator however does
2. Consistent load shedding could lead to | not provide sufficient power to run
cancellation of shows resulting in all the operations
financial loss and reputational damage.
3. Lack of alternative power generation in
Joburg Theatre and Soweto Theatre
leading to either cancellation of shows or
no bookings
4 Lack of brand 1. Media partnerships Review of the marketing and
architecture {continuous | 2. Media community management communication strategy.
and consistent message | 3. Continuous brand and productions
management) awareness campaigns.
4. Marketing strategy in place
5. Barter exchange deals
5 Inconsistent attendance | 1. Different pricing structures based on 1. To target companies with CSI

programmes to bring a child to the
theatre
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1 2. Dev

2. Offering a limited number of funding policy to target
discounted and/or free tickets to the sponsorship
youth and senior citizens communities. 3. Conduct comprehensive survey
3. Mobile theatre truck used to access to establish audience needs
targeted communities.
4. Diverse and inclusive theatre
programmes
6 Inadequate funding to 1. Negotiating lower rate with facilitators. | 1. Continue to source external
support youth 2. The use of volunteers in the industry. funding (i.e. SAMRO).
development 3. JCT is in partnership with WITS for the | 2. Partner with other institutions
programmes enrolment of Applied Performing Arts that are already offering similar
and Arts Management (APAAM) and training in the industry i.e. JPO.
Market Theatre
7 Inability to secure 1. Good relationships with producersi.e. | 1. Establish more relationships with
attractive productions co-productions agreements. wide variety of producers, locally
2. Relationships with Joburg Ballet and internationally.
Company and there is an SLA in place. 2. Source more funding to enable
in-house production.
3. Programme of events in
collaboration with IPO
4, Seek external funding from DAC

e Internal Audit

Despite the disruptions of Covid- 19, Internal audit had completed all audits for 2019/20
The assurance outcomes by internal audit are based on the work done in fourth quarter of the 2019/20
financial year.

e External Audit (Auditor General of SA)
The officer of the Auditor General concluded the audit of the 2018/19 financial year during the quarter
under review.

Joburg City Theatres maintained its clean audit status
The assurance outcomes provided on the table below are based on the 2018/19 audit outcome

_———— e .- — . e
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Summary Discussion of Operational Risks

Operational Risks - Monitoring and assurance

Operational risk assessment reviews for all the departments for the current financial year have been
completed. These are key operational risks that have been highlighted herein to evidence the
implementation of a combined assurance; and the integrated assurance approach within JCT.

s  Group Internal Audit

Group Internal audit commenced with the audit during the second quarter of the current financial
year, the internal audit coverage plan is linked to the top 5 strategic risks of Joburg City theatres, even
though the audit is still in progress at the end of the quarter, certain components were complete, and
therefore assurance could be provided on completed components, by the end of the period under
review assurance from internal audit could only be provided on completed components.
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CHAPTER THREE: SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE
Section 1: Highlights and Achievements

JOBURG ' EE?SILIJ LB
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Due to the current outbreak of Covid-19, there can be no clear indication in the foreseeable future as to when
theatres might be allowed to operate at full capacity. On Wednesday 17 June the President announced that
restrictions would be eased for theatres but this would be subject to specific and stringent safety requirements;
and protocols would need to be strictly adhered to for activities to remain open.

As the number of infection and death rates from the virus continue to increase on a daily basis, it is likely that
social distancing would continue to be in place until we reach Stage 1. This puts a threat on the theatres’ limited
resources and careful consideration needs to be exercised when programming venues in the coming months.

Most of the world’s theatres have shut their doors for the foreseeable future. Social distancing is the new way
of life. Leaving the house for necessities means wearing a mask and standing 1.5 — 2 metres apart. Theatres will
need to be realistic in their approach and thoughtful about how their strategy is conveyed to the industry and
the public.

“The show must go on" is a phrase in showbusiness, but sometimes the show cannot go on, at least not the way
we originally planned. “The Coronavirus is causing a global rethink, much of what we havoe taken for granted
has been changed and taken away from us overnight and we've had to adjust. We have been hard at work trying
to keep offering our patrons an exceptional content that they have become accustomed to, as we say in our
business the show must go on”, JCT Artistic Director Makhaola Ndebele noted.

During the fourth quarter JCT provided theatre lovers with an opportunity to choose the warmest front-room
seat in the comfort of their homes with the best selection of the past theatre productions to be watched online
during the lockdown. The streaming of a series of acclaimed productions for free for a limited period are
presented on Joburg Theatre, Roodepoort Theatre and Soweto Theatre youtube channels.

~ HSTREAMTHEATRE THIS YOUTH MONTH.
SUBSCRIBE TO OUR YOUTUBE CHANNEL

., Joburgcit B
Fektheatred sulllejéitﬁe Momposry

“ JOINOUR VIRTUAL PERFORMANCE TO LEVEL 1 1— l

FOBEETELTE | SOWITOTHEATRE | @RO0DEPORTTHEATRE

During April the programming and marketing department challenged artists to stay positive and share their ideas
on keeping positive. The artists were encouraged to comment with a monologue, dance piece, poetry or music
piece of choice, self-tape or video of their favourite solo or monologue using the hashtag
#JCTCreativeSoloChallenge. Artists were also encouraged to tag a theatre junky they would like to nominate to
join in the challenge. The first entrant was Soiso Ndaba a Naledi Award nominee for Best Lead Performance
(male) in a Musical as Majoro Mnisi - Angola Camp 13, which was then followed by several other inspiring solos.

e e ——————————————————
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While scores of theatre makers and practitioners stayed safe behind closed doors, the curtains opened on social
media for the announcement of the Naledi Award Nominees for 2020. These nominations are for productions
that took place in the 2019. Joburg City Theatres is honoured to have collaborated with some of the nominated
productions with renowned and internationally acclaimed producers and companies: Cion: Requiem of Ravel’s
Bolero Produced by Vuyani Dance Theatre & The Joburg Theatre nominated under a new category Best
Contemporary Dance/Ballet Production; Noni Mkhonto was nominated for her role as Henrietta Hen in Joburg
Theatre’s 2019 pantomime Jack and the Beanstalk under the category Best Featured/Supporting Actress in a
Musical; an enormous congratulation goes to Aunty Merle the Musical that debuted for the very first time in
Joburg for bagging seven nominations in different categories including Best Production of a Musical.

JCT is proud of their very own Resident Company Manager Timothy le Roux for his nomination for Best Director
of a Musical — Rock of Ages. The Peoples Theatre’s, Thokozani Jiyane as Marty the Zebra in Madagascar, A
Musical Adventure Jr was nominated in the category Best Performance in a Production for Young Audiences
(Male/Female (Supported By ASSITEJ SA).

JCT kicked off the online streaming with the undisputed queen of South African pantomime Janice Honeyman's
Snow White. The ever-popular and hugely entertaining story of Snow White was brought to life once again from
page to stage to screen in an enchanting production complete with stunning sets, beautiful costumes,
breathtaking special effects and lots of comedy, music and witty text. This streaming saw people getting excited
about getting back into the theatre to watch one of the favourite productions of all times.

Supreme Divas was next to delight audiences old and young, an ultimate concert experience celebrated the
powerhouse female singers that became legends through their music over the past few decades.

Afrikan Heritage Ensemble took viewers back to the roots with IJADU le Africa performance a 16-voice strong
acapella outfit. The ensemble is led by none other than the philanthropist, Award-winning vocalist, composer,
cultural & heritage proponent as well as writer and radio presenter, Mbuso Khoza who is not only a musician
but also a producer of note whose speciality is the interpretation of Amahubo, the music from 17th century
southern Africa region.

On freedom day / week the streaming of an artistic reflection on Steve Biko’s writings, his untimely death, and
his life’s legacy; highlighting possible lessons for a new generation of South Africans, and world citizens, seeking
to build and contribute to a more humane global society was presented. This production was written and
directed by JCT’s very own Artistic Director Makhaola Ndebele. Timed to coincide with Freedom Day in South
Africa, Bantu sought to highlight possible lessons for a new generation of South Africans about how to buiid and
contribute to a more humane global society and forms a part of the theatre's ongoing dedication to staging new
productions that reflect on the legacy of South Africa's most prominent and influential leaders.

In an effort to keep our audiences entertained at home, the theatre streaming continued into the month of May
with Carmen the Ballet in partnership with the Joburg Ballet and Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra; the
grandest of all ballet classics came to life in Joburg Ballet's production of The Sleeping Beauty with Tchaikovsky's
magnificent score played by the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra; Gibson Kente's Too Late in partnership
with The National School of the Arts; and on Africa Day the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra gave South
Africans a virtual performance of a beautiful, harmonic rendition of the African Union Anthem. The aim and
message of this performance was to inspire hope and encourage Africans across the continent to continue to be
empathetic as we work together to defeat the global pandemic.

COVID 19 pandemic has created an opportunity for the theatres to capture new audiences by staying active
online. The exciting creative online activities included using theatre as a tool to keep kids active mentally and
physically during the national shutdown. The activities ranged from shadow puppetry, storytelling, song and
dance, games as well as drama activities that the whole family can participate in.

e e = e = =
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The activities conducted on our social media platforms i.e. Twitter, Facebook and continue to run as required
and informed by the national lockdown guidelines. Response and participation on the posts has been positive
and growing steadily, with daily engagement from patrons.

Soweto Theatre’s monthly programme Poetic Thursdays was taken to social media under the hashtag
#OnlineOpenMic Challenge. This challenge called on poets to share a recorded open mic performance which
was then placed on Soweto Theatre platforms for engagement. The post with the most engagements secured
the poet a headline spot at the next Poetic Thursdays post COVID 19.

e

/ peetic

' thursoays
25Q UNERIP MR URIE ST

joburg city g et £l By a

.
JCg theatres Lheabre @SOWETOTHEATRE

Over 50 submissions were received through a WhatsApp line and reached over 20 000 people with the online
performances. What was notable about this challenge was that it opened up access to the theatre for young
poets residing outside of the City of Joburg.

While our theatres are dark, our spirits reach out to one another!
The curtains will rise, and we will tell our stories again!

YOUTH AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

This report reflects on the stumbling steps we have taken to find a footing and place for our work through this
global crisis. We stumbled towards each other and used the time to get to know the people we work with and
what is important to them.

June 16 and Youth Month commemoration

This June, the youth and community development unit both remembered and commemorated the youth who
gave up being young for current freedom and celebrated the hope that youth represent for every generation.
Joburg Theatre hosted its first online special and presented the poetry, song and comedy in creating a moment
of reflection and explosions of laugher through it all. Working with the Art24 collective, Indie Foundation, the
Current State of Poetry and Thugs of Comedy, JT put together a show in a time when the stages are dark. We
sing through the pain, laugh through the crisis and poetry touches what is humane in us all.

This period demonstrated the importance of partnerships the theatres have with the young artists and
producers who made work despite the challenges of the times.

Indie Foundation has been a partner working with Joburg Theatre to offer master classes for youth entering the
music industry. The Indie program helps young musicians navigate the music industry and get insiders to guide
and prepare youth for the reality of creating music and being a part of the music industry.

Indie Foundation and Joburg Theatre have entered a partnership once again and host a weekly online show
introducing independent musicians. The 20 minute episodes see the musician do an acoustic set and narrate
the story behind their music. Again, these programs are meant to capture and share with the public, the vast
array of talent, art forms and people who furnish the Joburg Theatre stages.
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Laughter is said to be the best medicine. When times are bad, the best thing people can do is laugh through the
jokes that often speak more directly to the feelings we have but have no words for. Stand up comedy at Joburg
Theatre is a series of local comedians doing a set for online streaming.

The youth and community development unit has been working with and creating a community of play writing.
The YCD managers have created online writing lessons as well as worked with groups to develop plays.

in an effort to continue with our programmes during the shutdown, Soweto Theatre’s youth development
department has continued teaching and learning and developing, facilitating classes virtually to prepare its
drama and music development programme learners for their planned mid-year showcase at the end of June and
music exams with UNISA in October.

Lits’'omong-drama programme found ways of continuing with the preparation-for the mid-year showcase; by
conducting lessons virtually. Classes are conducted through WhatsApp videos and calls. Facilitators send
briefs/scripts to students, who then do work on their side and send through recorded proof of the given task or
work.

The music tutorial programme classes are conducted through Google Classrooms which has been
identified as the best tool to utilise for the music theory lessons. Zoom together with the support of WhatsApp
Video call and Google Meet are some of the additional tools that the programme has been utilising for practical
music lessons. Trainers contact their group of students weekly to schedule one on one lessons with each student,
recording of lessons is done through Zoom and Google Meet.

Lessons have been live video lessons and others have been through trainers recording work for students, who
then do work on their side and send through recorded proof of the given work.

Through this virtual process, the Orchestra has managed to record a prayer/song to give hope during this difficult
time in the world, please see link to the video of the song below.
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_At-vUOSwWOA
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The health crisis has resulted in the cancellation of productions planned for the rest of 2020 and the
management is exploring possibilities for performing opportunities later in the year. How these roll out will
depend on the prevailing regulations in place for managing COVID-19.

Towards the end of June the company started returning to its base at the Joburg Theatre under strict protocols
established to achieve as safe a return to the physical work environment as possible.

MARKETING, PUBLICITY AND PUBLIC RELATIONS
in the 111-day period under review the office generated an Advertising Value Equivalent (AVE) of
R 10,688,382.85 from 171 media clips.

Publicity, marketing and awareness was generated through a combination of press releases, emailers, direct
contact with media outlets and individual journalists, social media, The Friends of the Ballet, The South African

National Dance Trust and Diva PR.

Publicity, Marketing and Print output generated summary:

Press Releases: 3 (1 for Don Quixote, 1 for company update, 1 for The Corona Suite)
Electronic Mailers to database: 1

Printed programmes: 1 (Don Quixote)

Programme cast sheets: 4 (Don Quixote)

New email signatures: 2

Stills & video:

One photoshoot took place during this time, for The Nutcracker.

Interviews & features: Most coverage during this period was for Don Quixote.
Key broadcast TV coverage included an interview with Thabang Mabaso on E-TV’s “The Morning Show” as well
as JB School Co-ordinator Jo-Anne Wyngaard on “Stories Wat Saak Maak”.

Key magazine coverage included a double-page spread on Don Quixote in Creative Feel, plus coverage in Hello
Joburg, Get It, High Life, What’s On In Joburg, Sawubona and City Buzz.

Key print media coverage included general coverage in The Star, Sunday Times, The Saturday Star, Mail &
Guardian, City Buzz and the Soweto Urban Newspapers.

Key radio coverage included a give-away with Heather Hook on Niche Radio and our regular adverts and give-
aways on Kaya FM.

Key online coverage included coverage on platforms including Netwerk24, B-Sharp Entertainment, Joburg.co.za,
Edgars Club, HeatherHook.com and Mark Lives for a recent win of a Creative Circle Award for the 2019 campaign
with Superbalist.

Social media coverage: coverage during this period focused primarily on Don Quixote, the fundraising gala and
some unique videos featuring dancers in special moments during lockdown. We have also started a series of
online interviews entitled Joburg Ballet - Off Stage on Instagram Live. These take place every Thursday and the
response has been wonderful.

Facebook: 13 918 followers (up from13 640)
Twitter: 4 636 followers (up from 4 568)
instagram: 6 872 followers (up from 6 030)
Linkedin: 250 followers {up from 181)

T ———————————
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JOBURG BALLET SCHOOLS

Schools open

Schools: Accelerated, Alexandra, Braamfontein and Soweto.

Recommencement of all schools

Classes running as expected and teachers started teaching Grade work in February with the Intention that all
students would at least know 60% of the syllabus with the barre work and centre practice completed before
assessments to be held from 25 to 28 March.

Performances

Don Quixote: 13—22 March 2020

Students from the school were chosen to perform in the production. Selection is based on merit and reliability;
they have to perform alongside professional dancers in the company and have to maintain the high standard
set by the company; the selected students began rehearsals on 21 February 2020; selected students were
Tshiamo Mampane. Rizé Habana, Bethany Delaurentis and Maya Weir with Naleli Hlalele and Kenelwe Mtsweni
on standby; the students performed the roles of cupids.

Attendance

Attendance was more regular with the students settling into the academic schools. We found that students in
Braamfontein, specifically the Grade 1 class, were coming late. The time allocated for Grade 1 was clearly
communicated to the parents last year at auditions.

Disruptions at Facilities
There were no disruptions except at Soweto’s Uncle Toms Hall which was booked for two ANC functions; we
were not allowed on the premises due structures being erected.

March 2020
1 to 13 March: students attended classes at their respective centres until the first COVID-19 Case occurred in
South Africa.

16 March to 7 April: The Alexandra, Braamfontein, Soweto and Accelerated schools closed before the academic
term ended and we were advised not to have classes until told otherwise; at that time mid-April was set as a
return date.

16 March: After meeting with management, it was decided that all schools close as per COVID-19 regulations,
then stated as being until 14 April. We have always had WhatsApp groups for each school.

20 March: First video Examination Grade work was shared with the newest students as they would be the ones
that suffer the most and a period of a week was given to learn the work and then send a video of how the
student is coping with the work that was sent. | record the work as per class and send it on. Exercises sent: Grade
1 Barre and Centre practice up to pas de chat. 23 March: stretching videos for all students as it pertains to their
class work (feet exercises, balletic stance, stretching and how to warm up before class). 26 March: Videos of all
barre work sent to Grade 2 to 5 with the return video expected on the weekend. From a total of 143 students,
73 students have sent back videos and two parents are frontline workers (children not with them), five parents
had problems trying to send their videos. In total 80 students have been interacting with us.

The above includes the work Thabang has been doing with the Accelerated Students and Thabang reviews all as
well as conditioning and theory sent by Tshego to all and she reviews all. Grade work Jo-Anne and Braamfontein
lower Grades Carmen.

Reviewing the work takes time as you send each student and individual feedback on each exercise attempted.
We have almost daily interaction with students.
27 March: National lockdown instituted.

e ———
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8 April to 1 May 2020

Students who were able to participate were sent the entire barre for each Grade to learn and sent us videos of
their progress which we teachers reviewed and gave feedback. Once this was done and corrections applied, we
sent them centre practice up to allegro to work. Basic theory as it pertains to grade exams were sent with their
grade class work. All Cecchetti Teachers was advised by the CSSA that the exam work is not to be used on social
media platforms. All parents were advised and had to acknowledge and state that the work will not be displayed
on social media platforms.

May 2020 to date

We have since given the students enchainements to learn which we found to be poorly executed. It was
therefore decided to break it down as per their grade levels and send it in this format and we are now seeing
students who are improving during this trying time.

June 16 - Youth Day: We will be having classes on the school’s Facebook page from 12h00 to 15h00. Taking
these classes will be Jo-Anne Wyngaard (Basics of Ballet}, Thabang Mabaso (Floor Barre) and Mahlatse Sachane
(Neo Ciassical/Contemporary).

We will be sending music to students to show off what they are doing at home for the School’s Facebook page.
| have video which should you require can be sent to you.

JOBURG BALLET SCHOOL INTERACTIONS

Joburg Ballet was part of a successful Creative Industries Career Expo from 11 — 13 March 2020. Jo-Anne
Wyngaard, Joburg Ballet School co-ordinator and a teacher at the School, was one of the guest speakers at the
Creative Career Expo Workshop.

With the start of te national lockdown on 27 March, we had to cancel all planned school interactions and have
contacted our partners for future plans once things are back to the new normal. At this stage we are unable to
confirm any interactions until further notice.

NN/
V‘:b

JOHANNESBURG
PHILHARMONIC
ORCHESTRA

With the Covid-19 outbreak across the globe, and the necessary lockdown imposed on many people throughout
the world, the JPO’s activities have been severely impacted. Nonetheless, in the face of this global crisis, the JPO
has shown its resourcefulness and commitment like never before. None of what we do would be possible
without the robust strategic leadership of our board of directors, our funders, and our enthusiastic audiences. |
would like to thank our focused management, and our dedicated musicians for the day-to-day work that they
do to bring the power of music to an ever-growing audience, in spite of tremendous difficulties. We look forward
to the future with confidence, and hope that our work continues to encourage and inspire you.

The last few months have been difficult for us all, with the Corona virus posing many challenges to the world at
large. But it has also shown the resilience of the human race to work together toward a common good. At the
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heart of the work that the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra does lies an enthusiastic and extremely
competent board of directors, for whom | have been particularly grateful over the past few months. It has also
been our honour to welcome Carolyn Steyn, a philanthropist, actress and radio personality, as the newest JPO
board member. Our dedicated administration and musicians of the highest calibre have also shown their
resourcefulness during this time. | remain grateful to them all for what they continue to contribute, and look
forward to the future with confidence that we will overcome these challenges. Thank you for partnering with us
as we pursue excellence in the arts, in the face of unchartered difficulties.

The international outbreak of the Covid-19 virus has left no sector of society untouched. Many people
throughout South Africa and the world at large have faced extremely harsh realities as a result of the outbreak,
with effects of the virus reaching far further than we can know at this time. The Johannesburg Philharmonic
Orchestra, together with the world at large, has been challenged to approach our work differently at this time.
In an effort to remain positive, and actively pursue its role as an organisation responsible for the upliftment of
society, the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra has sought ways to remain in contact with its audience, while
adhering to the law, maintaining all the necessary health and safety protocols, and using this strange season to
advance our work in the best way possible.

e
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The World Symphony Series (WSS) is fundamental to the work that the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra
does. With four seasons being presented annually, the series brings the cream of local and international talent
to the South African stage and showcases the full artistic capability of its members, both individually and as a
unit, with substantial works of art performed. Due to the outbreak of the Corona Virus, the WSS Winter Series
was cancelled. We continue to explore ways in which we will be able to present our flagship series in the future.
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Collaborations - The Johannesburg Philharmonic is always enthusiastic about working with organisations who
share their commitment to excellence and their desire to make a difference to the communities around them.
The orchestra is committed to celebrating the success of others, and bringing a voice te the vision of our
collaborators by partnering with them to make spectacular events come alive with orchestral music. Through
our combined efforts we are developing a cultural scene in the city Johannesburg and the province of Gauteng
that is world-class, vibrant, and very exciting. The orchestra is ever pursuing the notion that music, arts and
culture are important pillars of our rainbow nation. During the months of April-June 2020 we have found new
and innovative ways to partner with external organisations; these are outlined in the pages that follow. We look
forward to widening our partnerships as lockdown restrictions ease.

While the orchestra’s planned programming for the 2020 calendar was necessarily put on hold, the orchestra
has put together a number of projects throughout the lockdown period, showing their adaptability and
resourcefulness during this difficult time.

The Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra’s YouTube channel was created on 31st March 2020, and has to date
received 18497 views and has 149 subscribers.

Videos While each of the below videos can be viewed at their respective links, the JPO also included an email to
its subscribers with each campaign, highlighting various elements of the music, performers, initiatives or
collaborations.

1. New productions/collaborations with the KwaZulu-Natal Philharmonic Orchestra Individuals from the
Johannesburg and Kwa Zulu-Natal Philharmonic Orchestras joined forces in putting together virtual
performances.

e Amazing Grace — Johannesburg and KZN Philharmonic Orchestra’s and a special tribute to South Africa
as the wave of Covid-19 hits - https://youtu.be/cwzgg7MyJES , posted on 14 April 2020 with 13 096
views.
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Johannesburg and KZN Philharmonic Orchiestra’s send a special tribute to
South Africa

13,006 views * Apr 14,2020 21y Bl S SHARE By SAVE e
e 'Brahms’ Wiegenlied and Thula Thula' - Johannesburg and KZN Philharmonic Orchestra’s honour
mothers throughout SouthAfrica - https://youtu.be/z9RAInI-PsQ . Dateposted: 9th May 2020 Views to

date: 1033
e ‘African Union Anthem’ - African Singers and Orchestras celebrate Africa Day with the ‘African Union

Anthem’ - https://voutu.be/4X0QFCgthhQ . Dateposted: 22nd May 2020 Views todate: 1505

2. Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra’s archive highlights The JPO posted a series of videos from its archives:
e 2020 Summer Season — JPO |Valentine’s Variety Gala (videol) — First movement of Concierto de
Aranjuez by Joaquin Rodrigo with the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra, guitarist Goran Krivokapic
and conductor William Eddins - https://voutu.be/mDe |bIDg8Q . Date posted: 31st March 2020 Views

to date: 86.
e 2020 Summer Season - JPO | Valentine’s Variety Gala (overture) - Hector Berlioz: “Un Bal” from
Symphonie Fantastiquewith the Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra and conductor William Eddins -
https://youtu.be/B3eTk6qVvZg . Date posted: 31st March 2020 Views to date: 842

2020 Summer Season - JPO | Valentine's Variety Gala (overture)
242 views + Mar 31,2020 iy 18 @10 A SHARE &3 SAVE  .ue

e Mozart'sRequiem Highlights |[JPOwithGauteng Choristers- Conducted by Bernhard Gueller -
https://youtu.be/KeSGvaghkOl . Date posted: 8th April 2020 Views to date: 809

= —————— ..
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e JPO | Violin Concerto in D Major by Korngold | Yampolsky and Gilman - https://youtu.be/ZsN9Pkw22bc
. Date posted: 20th May 2020 Views to date: 404

e JPO | Mendelssohn's Overture "The Hebrides" | Summer Season 2019 with Daniel Boico
https://youtu.be/MPEEgpHNnxUg . Dateposted: 3rd June 2020 Views to date: 454

e JPO | Grieg’s Piano Concerto in a minor with Olga Kern and Daniel Boico | Summer Season 2019-
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=K2f6]3mNrTo&feature=youtu.be Date posted:11th June 2020
Views to date: 256

e JPO | Rimsky-Korsakov: Capriccio Espagnol {audio) | recording in February 2011 - https://
www.youtube.com/watch?v=S7fCbWRbHNo&feature=youtu.be Date posted: 18th June 2020 Views to
date: 216

2. Johannesburg Philharmonic Orchestra’s archive highlights The JPO posted a series of videos from its
archives:

3. Partnership with Joburg Ballet and Joburg Theatre (posted on Joburg Theatre’s channel) Following the
disappointment of being unable to stage the production of Don Quixoto, which was scheduled to open
just days after South Africa declared its National State of Emergency, Joburg Ballet, together with the
JPO, streamed alive performance of past shows, including Carmen and The Sleeping Beauty. The
production  can be viewed via the joburg theatre’s video stream at
https://www.joburgtheatre.com/video-stream/

THE JOHARNESBURE PHILHARMONIC ORCHESTRA TASKED WEBER SHANDIWACK WITH COMPSLING, PROCF-READING AXD IISTRIBTING A NUMEER OF PRESS RELEASES FOR THE SOUTH AFRICAN MEDIA. THESE
mmmmsmmmmmmwummmmmmmm ‘THE COLLABORAYION WATH SA SINGERS i CELEBRATING AFRICA BAY

e o

NEW§ OO

CAASSIADS = PROSLRTY « L~ wnio CATALCGAS

The johannesburg Phitharmonic Orchestra (JPO) has appointed Jeppe Old Girl,
Carolyn Steyn, as its newest board member recently

Carolyn, the founder of 67 Blankets for Nelson Mandela Day, a philanthropist,
actress, radio personality and patron of the arts, brings with her over four
decades of experience in the arts industry.

Also read: WATCH: Jeppe Giris receives RY,7-m from proud Jeppe old girl

She will join JPO, a not-for-prafit company and a pubtic benefit organisation,
alongside a diverse board of directors comprised of captains of industry and
credible leaders.

B 1PO is chaired by former deputy chief justice Dikgang Mosenegke, with arts
manager and Juilbard School trained singer Bongani Tembe as the chief
executive and artistic director.

Founder of 67 Blankets joins Joburg Philharmonic
Orchestra's board

" Chiw THnes ]

Tibe: AN Atren mirgg o7 rews 7= A it is Omia 75 Liay 7930
Emeanaat

2000527 . BYATF WRITER

g£ “Thisis animportant appointment for JPQ as | respect Carolyn
. B as a person of great integrity who genuinely cares about

All Africa sings as one as AU anthem is recorded people from all walks of life,” sald Bongani,
He said he is always moved by her humility.

“She has already made an indelible impact in the arts industry through
innovauve contribution that positively impacts on people’s lives and aiways
seeks 1o constantly uplift and contribute ta the industry in ways that matter

o A e i on Sanplhs hacat e buarmng o B v e el ot ate A
1 DBLIUE WUCORS. uag

4. Partnership — Promotion of Live Concert of Sinfonia Rotterdam As the concert lockdown slowly relaxed
for the arts and cultural sector in Europe, Sinfonia Rotterdam seized the opportunity to perform a special
live concert in the iconic Laurenskerk Rotterdam. The concert followed strict social distancing protocols
of one and a half metres for the both audience and musicians, and was livestreamed in HD on 5th June
2020. Seating whilst maintaining social distancing meant that there were only 30 people present in the
audience. The JPO was delighted to share this performance featuring pianist Ronald Brautigam who
performed with our sister orchestra — The KwaZulu-Natal Philharmonic Orchestra, and South African
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maestro Conrad van Alphen, who has performed with both the Johannesburg and KZN Philharmonic
Orchestras.

" Northetif] Medviile St
L : | o~ I imes @@@@ o Cowt WS IPO DR
. - 2543728
5 A o

Carolyn Steyn how a board member for

the Johonnesburg Philharmonic for customers in distressed -
Qrchestro industries.” @

[ [=[ale] =] -] ==

Regional choirs give their best performances
Wlhelry 4 ¢ i TS 2 13 Bitad

NEWFST JPO

il ML B

LK B et

: SA singers and orchestras celebrate Africa Day |
AUhome with KENFO | with the African Union Anthem

Podcasts

SA Singers and Orchestras celebrate Africa Day with the "African
Union Anthem’

_— . —— = —
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WATCH | Here's how SA snﬁg's and
orchestras are uniting for Africa Day

@ South Afncan Singers and Cicheslras celebrate . o
. walch lates
. .

OUTBREAK
o coa o v |

A virtual performance for South African
moms

Wanted
PHILANTHROPIST CAROLYN STEYN BELIEVES THE
SHOW MUST GO ON F()R SA'S TALENTED ARTISTS

TG THE RUGARD OF THE J !HHNH:SEI.RG PHILHARMONIC
R OF MUSIC TO INSFPIRE HOP

CARGLYN STEYK, KEWLY ARPOINT
GRC [57‘5& RCLIEVDS (X THE PO
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COVERAGE: RATIO AND TELEWISIN
DURING THE LAST FEW MONTHS, THE JPO HAS RECEIVED THE FOLLOWIRG RADID AND TELEVISION COYERAGE:

1. Radlio interviews

. board aj
. classlc FMO&\I W wosppm ntment
+  Channel Africa interview wml Hongani Tembe

* 702 Interview with Bor wﬁ ani Tembe
+  Metro FM interview with Bongani Tembe
2 Television interviews

* SABC 2 Morning Live Africa Day

CEVID-19
SOUTH AFRICA
GO D CAHY

22583

W G

Ww 4@

w U G

W e e

restaurant

the theatre restaurant

STAGES sz Jotnay Thestre

STAGES at Rocdepoort Thestra

Q€

food for the soul

HOSPITALITY AND CATERING

ATAGES at Sowees Thestre

Due to the current COVID 19 pandemic, hospitality and Catering was unfortunately completely shut down along
with the rest of the country. JCT Hospitality department was privileged to be asked to assist with feeding the
needy citizens of the City of Joburg (COJ). JCT Hospitality department provided catering services for COJ Social

Development department from the 5 April 2020.
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This project ran throughout April and May. operating through all the lockdown levels on a skeleton crew the
hospitality and catering department provided the refreshments and snacks for the United Nations Personal
Protective Equipment donations that were on held the 2 June 2020, This Personal Protective Equipment was
handed over to the front line staff & our poor communities of the City Of Joburg

CITY OF JOHANNESBURG

June was also the month of testing, and this was highlighted by the Testing Campaign for #JMPD officers &
@CoJPublicSafety employees at the JMPD Headquarters in Martindale. These frontline workers are are vital in

ensuring that the COVID 19 regulations are adhered to, and as such took precaution in protecting and screening
themselves.

i
LRI TR
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Special Meyoral Meeting — Foood Packs 1 7 June -Joburg Speaker is currently welcoming Councillors and
guests to the virtual Council meeting and mapping out today's agenda.
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To support and drive its core strategy, JCT appreciates that values identify the principles for the conduct of the
institution in carrying out its mission; and in this regard, the institutional values are derived in conjunction with
the JCT mission. JCT values define a citizen-oriented approach for producing and delivering its services in line
with the service delivery improvement priorities of the COJ, as follows:

WhatitmesnsnpaciceorJoburg C Theaes
Service With Pride We will display a results orientation and a commitment to perform and deliver on the
priorities of the organisation.
We will place customer service excellence at the centre of everything we do.
We will do so in a competent, timely, cost effective and efficient manner.
We will take ownership of our work at all times and take responsibility for our actions

Section 4: Capital Projects & Expenditure

Joburg City Theatres managed to achieve the quarterly target and the overall expenditure for 2019/20 is at
100% .The diagram below depicts the current status quo for JCT capital expenditure.

Expenditure Budget

R 34, 751, 000

R 34, 673, 591

—_———— e — e ——
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3467359192 R 34,751,000.00

Section 5: Building and Security

Capex

Stage Machinery Upgrade | Action Taken

1 Overall From April to date concentration of the
upgrade was mainly on cabling of SSW,

1.1 approximately 60% of the total work has been completed BSW, and fly floor.

1.2 Upper Machinery is 68% complete Currently Mocon is working finishing
difficult cabling systems before the

1.3 Lower Machinery is 50% complete theatre opens up again

4 Soft devel is 16% | Mocon continues with upgrading of

24 Softwatedevelopment is 16% complete upper machinery systems and BSW and
SSW Cabinets.

1.5 Fly Floor conversion is 35% complete

1.6 Hardware in the storage area is 83% complete

Health and Safety Action Taken

1. Incidents
1%t case — Council Canteen and test

came back negative.
2™ case Joburg Staff put in self-

1.1 2 Covid-19 Cases were reported. First Case was reported on quarantine.

27 May 2020 (Council Canteen), and second case (Lesedi
Theatre) were reported on 8 June 2020. Actor reported that Both Cases SHE (COJ) tested the staff

he was COVID-19 Positive. for COVID-19. (Followed CO)J
Procedures)

2. Condoms

NOQO Action

e ———————
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Health and Safety

Action Taken

2.1 Fourth quarter no condoms were used because of
lockdown.

3. Evacuation Drill

3.1 No Evacuation drill due to lockdown

No Action

4, Evacuation Problem

4.1 A new Evacuation system currently being installed

Ongoing installation

5. Safety Meeting

5.1 No Safety Meeting due to lockdown

No Action

6. Security matters

6.1 No security incidents were reported in the fourth quarter

Limited security staff working during
lockdown period. All security brought
back after level four and three were
announced.

7. Maintenance

7.1 Building Management system

7.2 No Job cards due to lockdown

Quarterly maintenance done of the fire
system

Maintenance staff brought back in a
staggered fashion, doing general
building maintenance and painting
areas

8. Disaster Management

8.1 Covid-19 Procedures

8.2 Hand Sanitizers

8.3 Face masks

8.4 Staff working in the Theatre

S —

JCT Fourth Quarter Report 2019/20

Implement all the COVID-19 regulation
as stipulated by government in the
government gazette and in conjunction
with SHE at COJ

Hand Sanitizers on movable stands and
are installed at all entrances and at the
theatre entrances. The hand sanitizers
are Contentiously filled.

All staff has been issued with face

masks.

Security staff are working a three shift
work week.
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Health and Safety Action Taken

Maintenance staff has been divided into
two groups which alternate, two days
on and two days at home.

Cleaning staff also divided into two
groups which work one week on and
one week off.

Stage staff are called in as and when
8.5 Registers for staff and Public put in place FOH and at needed.

security control room
Screening done daily and registers filled
in when staff and public arrive. Register
are kept for safe keeping by the OHS

8.6 Signs manager.

All warning signs and information signs
was put up throughout the building.

Social distancing floor signs was put in
place at FOH and Metro Stages

8.7 Risk assessment and workplace plan documentation Restaurant.
Risk assessment and a workplace plan
has been done and shared with COJ

R RRR———mm—————_—.—_—_—_—_—_—_—§—§—§—§—§——— ™ -
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Section 7: Supply Chain Management and Black Economic Empowerment

The company adheres to a procurement system which is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost
effective in terms of Chapter 11 of the Municipal Finance Management Act, No 56 of 2003, read together with
the Municipal Supply Chain Management Regulations.

The company has a supplier database in order to afford all prospective suppliers registered on the database an
equal opportunity to submit quotations. Preference will be given to suppliers registered on the database, but it
does not necessarily follow that suppliers who are not registered as yet will be totally exempted.

It is however envisaged that this database will contribute to efficient administration and compliance to
prescribed policies, procedures and legislations. A Supplier Registration Form was created to assist in updating
or obtaining detailed supplier information for the database in accordance with the company’s Supply Chain
Management Policy and applicable legislations.

The Bid Adjudication Committees were established in terms of the provisions of Local Government Municipal
Finance Management Act (MFMA). This Committee consist of officials with delegated authority to recommend
bids in accordance with their terms of reference.The Bid Adjudication Committee considers the bids and makes
recommendation to the Accounting Officer / CEO to make final awards.

Bids were evaluated in accordance with criteria set out in the Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
(Act No: 5 of 2000) and the Preferential Procurement Regulations 2011, published in terms of Government
Gazette No 34350, JCT’s approved Supply Chain Management (SCM) Palicy and also in terms of the criteria set
out in the Construction Industry Development Board (Act No 38 of 2000).

in terms of Regulation 6 (1) read with Regulation 6(2) of the MSCMR issued in terms of the Local Government
MFMA 56 of 2003, the Board of Directors of the Municipal entity must maintain an oversight role over the
implementation of its SCM Policy. This report has been complied in compliance thereto. The CEO in terms of the
MSCMR, the company’s SCM Policy and delegations within the SCM Policy approves tenders up to R10 000
000.00.

All bids approved by the CEOQ are in accordance with the approved budget provisions.

PROCUREMENT FROM RELATED PARTIES

During the period under review, there were no payments processed on procurement from related parties.

e —————
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CHAPTER FOUR: HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT

Section 1: Human Resources Management

JCT’s Human Resource Management function is responsible in creating, delivering and sustaining the value
proposition for the organisation’s strategic objectives. The department was engaged in recruitment and
selection, training and development, implementing the employee wellness programmes, labour relations, and
implementation of approved HR policies and procedures.

The entity’s overall objective as set out in its employment policy is to ensure that the company’s employment
practices and remuneration policies motivate and retain talented employees and create an attractive
environment for ali employees. The employment policy is periodically reviewed to ensure that it remains
relevant and practical for the changing needs of current and potential employees. Our vision is to be the
employer of choice in our field. Our vision is to stay at the top end of compliance by including such requirements
into our working practices.

Section 2: Employee Remuneration

Employee Cost Breakdown Qtr 4 of 2019/200 %

Net Salary 16 807 755,26 78
PAYE 2 527 705,66 12
SDL 156 723,68 1
UIF 187 591,86 1
Medical Aid 1 386 044,00 6
Pension Contribution 3 254 623,22 15
Samwu Union & Funeral 263 714,26 1
13th Chegue, Leave Accrual and Performance Bonuses 1 084 402,06 5

| 25668 560,00 | 118,89 |

Section 3: Key Vacancies
All critical vacancies are filled.

All key vacancies are filled. The total number of JCT’s approved positions is 249 in this quarter. The number of
filled positions is 234. There were no permanent terminations in this quarter. The number of vacant posts still
stands at 15 (Table 2 provides a status report on the outstanding vacancies). A detailed staff establishment per
department is provided in Table 1 below to indicate occupancy and vacancy percentages as per the approved
structure.

_—
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Table 1: Detailed analysis on occupancy and vacancy report

Department App.rc.wed Occtx?ied Va.c:jmt Temporary | Interns/ Total
Positions Positions Positions Staff Learners
|Governance 7 6 1 0 2 9
Human Resources 3 3 0 0 1 4
Stage 28 27 1 0 2 30
Finance and SCM 15 15 0 0 3 18
Building and Security 54 53 1 3 1 58
ICustomer Services 12 12 0 29 2 43
Icuent Services (Programming) 8 8 0 0 2 10
ICatering and Hospitality 37 30 7 135 0 172
Soweto Theatre 57 53 4 17 5 79
..oodepoort Theatre 28 27 1 16 2 46
Total 249 234 15 200 20 469
Vacancy Occupancy % 94% 6% 43% 8%

JCT is operating at 94% occupancy against the approved staff establishment with the remaining 6% recorded as
vacancy rate. In addition to the above staffing, 4% of human capacity comprises of interns who are placed within
various departments and 43% of temporary/Adhocs staff members.

The number of temporary/Adhocs employees decreased from 203 to 200 in this quarter under review. There
were 3 terminations. The appointment of temporary employees is dictated by the needs of the business. The
number of temporary employees fluctuates on monthly basis due to the nature of the business.

The largest group of temporary employees is found in the Hospitality and Catering department. The total
number stands at 135. This group of employees consists of waiters, scullers, bartenders, commie chefs, kitchen
staff, banqueting staff and general assistants, etc. The Department currently utilises Fixed Term Contract due
to the business requirements for the following reasons —

e There s no fixed patron capacity in the theatre bars as the business in this area is determined by
the shows that are on the stage at any given time, hence this area is treated as seasonal work
based on the seasonal run of any given show.

e  The restaurant business is managed on a day to day basis based as per point 1, as well as the daily
take up of the restaurant by the surrounding businesses.

¢ Unfortunately, the department often experiences an extreme fluctuation of business volumes
that occur over a period of any one year due to the area of the hospitality it works in, namely, the
theatre.

e  There are very 7 foreign nationals in the workforce and their fixed term contracts are based on
their current valid work permits.

The number of temporary employees fluctuates on monthly basis due to the nature of the business

e —
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The table below summarises the recruitment activities and progress towards filing of vacant positions.

1.1 WORKFORCE PROFILE PER THEATRE
1.2.1. Joburg City Theatres
Table 2: Workforce Profile
Foreign
Male Female |
Occupational Level Nationals (':'::Itr;f
A C I w A C | w Male Female
Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior Management 8 1 2 2 4 0 0 1 0 0 18
Professionally
Qualified / Middle 3 0 0 4 4 1 0 0 0 0 12
Management
Skilled Technically
and Academically 18 1 1 6 22 1 0 1 1 0 51
Qualified
Semi-Skilled 46 1 0 0 26 4 0 77
Unskilled 50 0 25 0 0] 75
Total 125 3 12 82 2 0 5
234
%.9fG°0des 53.4% | 13% | 13% 5% |35% |0.9% |0.0% |09% |21% |0.0%
Representation
1.2.1. Joburg Theatre
Table 3: Workforce Profile
Male Female Fm:elgn
) Nationals Grand
Occupational Level
Total
C | w A C W Male | Female
Top Management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior 8 1 0 1 3 0 0 1 0 0 14
Management
Professionally
Qualified / Middle 3 0 0 4 3 1 0 0 0 0 11
Management
Skilled Technically 13 0 1 4 12 0 0 0 0 0 30
and Academically
Semi-Skilled 27 1 0] 0 15 0 0 0 0 43
Unskilled 13 0 0 0 11 0 0 0 0 24
Total 64 2 1 il a5 1 0 1 0
123
wiotaEneer 529% | 1.6% | 0.8% | 7% | 37% | 0.8% | 0.0% 0.8% | 0.0%| 00%
Representation

e e . e = =
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1.2.2. Soweto Theatre
Table 4: Workforce Profile

Male Female Foreign Grand
Occupational Level Nationals T?tgl
A € I w A C | w Male | Female
Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior Management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Professionally
Qualified / Middle 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Management
Skilled Technically and 1 0 0 0 6 0 o 0 0 0 7
Academically Qualified
Semi-Skilled 6 0 0 o 2 0 0] 0 0 0 8
Unskilled 28 0 0 0 9 0 0 0 0 0 37
Total 36 0 0 0 18 0 0 0 0 (1]
54
%00 Gender. 68% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 33% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0%
Representation
1.2.3. Roodepoort Theatre
Table 5: Workforce Profile
. Foreign
Occupational Male HERGIS Nationals Srand
Level Total
A C I w A C | wW Male | Female
Top Management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
SERior 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Management
Professionally
Qualified /
Middle 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Management
Skilled Technically
and Academically 1 0 0 0 3 1 0 0 0 0 5
Qualified
Semi-Skilled 5 0 0 0 2 0] 0 0] 0 0 7
Unskilled 9 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 14
Total 15 0 1 0 10 1 0 0 0 0
27
% of Gender 55% | 0.0% 4% | 0.0% 37% 4% | 0.0% | 0.0% | 0.0% 0.0%
Representation

e —
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1.2.4. Hospitality and Catering Department

Table 6: Workforce Profile

Occupational Male Female Foreign
Teegi Nationals Grand Total
A C | w A C I w Male | Female
Top Management 0] 0 0] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior 0 o | 1| 1 0 o | o o 0 0 2
Management
Professionally
Qualified / Middle 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Management
Skilled Technically
and Academically 2 1 0] 2 3 0 0 1 1 0] 10
Qualified
Semi-Skilled 8 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 4 0 17
Unskilled 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 10 1 1 | 3 9 0 | o 1 5 0
30
% of Gender 33% 3% 3% | 10% 30% | 0.0% | 0.0% 3% 17% 0.0%
Representation
Table 7: Recruitment progress report:
Department Position Number of Mode of Progress
positions recruitment
Legal and Internal & External |Recruitment placed on hold until
Governance |Compliance 1 further notice.
Specialist
Security Supervisor Internal & External |Credibility assessment completed
Building & 1 Recommendation appointment for
Security signatures in progress. Appointment
effective 1 July 2020
|Production Internal & External |Date not yet determined
Stage 1
Manager
Marketing Manager Internal & External [Credibility assessment completed.
1 Recommendation appointment for
signatures in progress.
Lighting Technician External Appointment is effective 1 June 2020.
1 Recruitment process closed.
Soweto
Theatre — - —
Sound Technician [External Interviews completed. Verification of
Diploma still pending.
Finance Officer 1 Internal & External |Advert closed 19 June 2020. Selection
process in progress.
Roodepoort |[Stage Crew 1 Internal & External |Recruitment process has commenced.
Theatre Advert closes 8 July 2020.
Hospitality & jJunior Sous Chef x 2 5 External Position placed on hold until further
[Catering notice. Operations are relatively quiet.

Page 114
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Department Position Number of Mode of Progress
positions recruitment
Junior Sous Chef x 2 External Recruitment to commence as soon as
2 the Coffee Shop is opened at the
Metro Centre.
Events Coordinator External Recruitment to commence as soon as
X 2 2 the Coffee Shop is opened at the
Metro Centre.
Assistant Events External Recruitment to commence as soon as
|Coordinator x 1 1 the Coffee Shop is opened at the
Metro Centre

During the quarter under review there were no new appointments, but one (1} temporary appointment was
made as depicted in the table below:

Table 8: New appointments

Department Position Effective Date Positions
- - - 0
Total Number of Appointments 0

Table 9: Temporary appointments

Department Position Effective Date Positions
Customer Services Online Content & Publicist 08 Jun 2020 1
Coordinator
Total Number of Appointments 1
Staff turnover

There was no termination in this quarter. One (1) internal movement across the theatres was recorded during
the quarter as shown in the table below.

Table 10 (a): Permanent Staff terminations / internal movements
Department Position Reason for Years in Effective date | Positions
termination service

Lighting Appointed to the 11 years 01 Jun 2020 1
Technician position of Lighting
Technician Soweto
Soweto Theatre. Formerly
Theatre occupied the
position of Stage
Crew at Joburg
Theatre.

Total Number of Terminations 1

N S e e e e e e e e e~
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Table 10 (b): Temporary Staff terminations

Department Position Reason for Years in Effective date | Positions
termination service

Hospitality & | Ushers/Adhocs | expiry of contract | 4 months 01 Jun 2020 3

Catering x3

Total Number of Terminations 3

Table 10 (c): Acting appointments

Current Acting Position | Reason for acting Duration
designation

Audience & General General Manager | 25 May 2020 25 Aug 2020
Community | Manager on Maternity leave

Development

Manager

Total Number of Acting Appointments 1

To balance the Employment Equity within the company, JCT will give preference to designated people, women
and persons with disabilities when opportunities arise. These targets will be achieved by way of replacing
employees who leave the organization due to natural attrition and reasons related to staff turnover. In order
to attract PWDs, adverts will also be pinned in the City’s library. We will also request the Department of Labour
to send applications as per the inherent requirements of the position, whenever there are vacancies.

The table below summarises JCT’s age groups according to race and gender.

Table 11: Age Analysis profile per race and gender

Age Gender Race
Age Number of % representation Male Female A C | w
Groups staff
18-25 7 3% 5 2 7 0 0 0
26-35 77 33% 45 32 74 2 1 0
36-45 79 34% 50 29 72 2 1 4
46-55 52 22% 33 19 45 0 1 6
56-65 19 8% 15 4 14 1 0 4
Total 234 100% 148 86 212 | 5 3 14

JCT employees aged between 18-35 years of age (youth) represent 36% of the staff population, 36-55 years
{(prime working age) represent 56% and 56-65 (mature working age) represent a marginal 8% of staff.

Section 4: Employment Equity

Section 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, provides that the employer must prepare and implement an
employment equity plan, which will help to reach employment equity in the workplace. The company
encourages promotion within the core employment base, with particular attention given to the opportunities
of promoting those staff members from historically disadvantaged communities.
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All the relevant employment equity reports, return of earnings and work skill plans are submitted to the
Department of Labour and Culture, Arts, Tourism, Hospitality and Sport SETA (CATHSSETA). The company
receives SETA rebates on a regular, fully monitored basis. The Chief Executive Officer, together with the Chief
Operating Officer, is responsible for the monitoring of the implementation of the employment equity plan. The
company is committed to the principles of equity, anti-discrimination and diversity as enshrined in the
Constitution and the Employment Equity Act. In this context, Joburg Theatre seeks to create an institution that
reflects the diversity of South African society, and which contributes to maximising the human resource
potential of its entire people.

The Company has employment policies that it believes are appropriate to the business and the market in which
it trades. Equal employment opportunities are offered to all employees. The company firmly endorses the four
key areas of employment equity identified by the Employment Equity Act:

¢ elimination of discrimination in decision-making;

e promotion of employee diversity;

e reduction of barriers to advancement of the disadvantaged; and
e Introduction of measures and procedures for transformation.

The implementation of JCT’s three-year employment equity plan is on track. The implementation of the plan is
monitored on quarterly and annual basis through the reports submitted to the City and to the Department of
Labour to ensure compliance requirements are fully met. The theatre’s management team is inclusive and
representative of the demographics of the country. The members of the support management team comprise
of staff members from a diverse background.

JCT is committed to the principles of equity, anti-discrimination and diversity as enshrined in the Constitution
and the Employment Equity Act. In this context, JICT seeks to create an institution that reflects the diversity of
South African society, which contributes to maximising the human resource potential of its entire people. JCT is
committed to appointing a fair representation of employees in terms of race and gender in order to comply with
its employment equity plan. The tables and graphs below are based on the formats prescribed by the
Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998 and the Department of Labour.

The numbers reflected in the tables below relate to the number of employees who were in the employ of ICT as
at 30 June 2020.

Employment Equity and Affirmative Action plans

JCT's Employment Equity is profiled according to gender, disability, race, and by occupational levels. The
employment equity targets are aligned to the country’s Economically Active Population (EAP) percentage
distribution within the Gauteng region. The EAP includes people from 15 to 64 years of age who are either
employed or unemployed and seeking employment and is used to assist employers in the analysis of their
workforce to determine the degree of under-representation of the designated groups. JCT is required to use
the EAP as a guide {City’s 50/50 gender), to determine the resource allocation and subsequent interventions
that are needed to achieve an equitable and representative workforce. It is important to note that the analysis
of the section of this report focuses on the EAP as depicted in the tables below.

Table 12: Employment Equity Profile

_—- - e e e b 86 8 -
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Occupational Level Male Female Grand

A C | W | Total A C | W | Total | Total
Top Management 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior Management 8 1 2 2 4 0 0 1 0 0 18

Professionally Qualified /
Middle Management

Skilled Technically and

Academically Qualified 18 1 1 6 22 1 0 1 1 0 51

Semi-Skilled 46 1 0 0 25 0 0 0 4 0 77
Unskilled 50 0 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 75
Total 126 3 3 12 | 82 2 0 2 5 0

% of Gender Representation | 54% | 1.3% | 1.3% | 5% | 35% | 0.8% | 0.0% | 0.8% | 2.1% | 0.0% 234

Table 13: Disability Profile

Occupational levels Males Female Total PWDs
A C I W A C | W
Top Management - - - - - - - - -

Senior Management - - - - - : - - -

Professionally Qualified / - - - - - 1 - - 1
Middle Management
Skilled Technically and - - - 1 - - - 1
Academically Qualified
Semi-Skilled - - - - - - - - -
Unskilled 1 - - - 1 - - - 2
Total 1 0 0 0 2 1 - 0

The target for employment of Persons with disability is 2%. It should be achieved against the institution’s entire
staff compliment. The employment of the persons with disabilities is currently at 1.7%.

To balance the Employment Equity within the company, JCT will give preference to designated people, women

and persons with disabilities when opportunities arise. These targets will be achieved by way of replacing

employees who leave the organization due to natural attrition and reasons related to staff turnover.

In order to achieve the equitable representation, Joburg Theatre will ensure that the following strategies are

adopted and implemented:

=  Where gender and racial underrepresentation exist in the Workforce, targeted recruitment for the EE
Targeted candidate shall be enforced unless the suitably qualified candidate from the Targeted Group was
not found;

= |dentify training which is aimed at addressing the imbalances within the organisation —train individual in
order to create a pool of suitably qualified employees from the Targeted Group and give them an
opportunity for growth in line with the EE Targets.

ﬂ
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Table 14: Employment Equity and Economically Active Population (EAP) Targets

Description Total number of Gauteng EAP JCT Variance
employees EE Target % EE Actual %

Africans 212 81.0% 91% 10%
Coloureds 5 2.6% 2% 0.6%
Indians 3 2.9% 1% -1.9%
Whites 14 13.5% 5.1% -8.4%
Persons with disability 4 2.0% 1.7% -0.3%
Male 148 55.9% 63% 7%
Female 86 44.1% 37% -7%

-

"able 15: Gender representation
Gender African Coloured Indian White TOTAL
Target | Actual | Target | Actual | Target | Actual | Target | Actual | Target | Actual

Male 453% | 55.5% | 1.3% | 1.3% | 19% | 1.3% | 7.4% 5% 55.9% 63.1%
Female | 357% | 35% 13% | 09% | 1.0% | 0.0% | 6.1% | 0.9% | 44.1% 36.8%
TOTAL | 81.0% | 90,5% | 2.6% | 2.2% | 2.9% | 1.3% | 13.5% | 5.9%

Target Achieved

Requires Improvement
During the reporting period (Table 10), overall African representation stands at 90.5% which is above the set
target of 81.0%, Coloureds at 2.2% which is also below a target of 2.6%, Indians at 1.3% which is below the
target of 2.9%, and the under representation of White employees by 5.9%, which is below the set target of

13.5%. Males form 63.1% of the staff profile and are over represented while women in general are
underrepresented at 36.8%.

Section 5: Skills Development and Training

Joburg City Theatres is committed to sustaining a continuous programme of training and development for its
management and staff to improve either job performance and/or competitiveness for promotion. The company
has a policy in respect of paid assistance for skills development courses, which help in enhancing the skills of
previously disadvantaged individuals. The policy also includes access to training by members of designated
groups, structured training and development programmes. Company retention strategies include the promotion
of diverse organisational cultures, interactive communication and feedback and ongoing labour turnover
analysis.

A number of employees attended training and development interventions during the quarter as shown in the
table below:

Table 16: Training and Development

The company is committed to sustaining a continuous programme of training and development for its
management and staff to improve either job performance and/or competitiveness for promotion. The Company

e ————
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has a policy in respect of paid assistance for skills development courses. The policy also intends to include access
to training by members of designated groups, structured training and development programmes.

The education assistance scheme ensures that employees are able to improve their educational qualifications

with the assistance of the funding from the company. Most of the assistance is provided over two to three years,
which is mostly the duration of academic programs.

Table 17: Outstanding Trainings

TRAINING NUMBER OF DELEGATES
Carpentry 3
Set Building and Carpentry 5
Set Buiiding 1
Stage Management 2
Web Ticket Sales 1
Media /Stakeholder relations 1
Forklift Training 4
Ladders Training 39
Scaffolding 40
TOTAL 96

The company has a policy in respect of paid assistance for skills development courses, which help in enhancing
the skills of previously disadvantaged individuals. The education assistance scheme ensures that employees are
able to improve their educational qualifications with the assistance of the funding from the company. Most of
the assistance is provided over two to three years, which is mostly the duration of academic programs. 13
employees are studying towards a qualification as indicated in the table below:

Table 18: Studying towards qualification

Training Total number of employees
Municipality Finance Management 6
Programme

B Com Accounting Sciences 2
B Com IT 1
B Com Informatics 1
Chartered Secretaries SA Professional Course 1
Post Graduate Diploma in Applied Accounting 1
Sciences

Master’s in Business Administration 2
TOTAL BENEFICIARIES 13

Section 6: Performance Management

JCT has a standardised performance management policy and procedure for setting performance objectives,
which is aligned to the Business Plan. Formal performance reviews are conducted bi-annually during December
and June. Year-end performance ratings are the determinant of a performance reward for employees on level 1
and 2. An enhanced performance development and coaching approach is being conducted on a continuous basis
to ensure that employee performance is consistently and fairly reviewed.

_—-s-, . ————————=————m——=—
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Succession planning within the company has been implemented for all senior management. The succession and
retention will be reviewed going forward, depending on funding being available. Retention strategies aimed at
discouraging the employees from leaving the company will be developed and discussed.

Section 7: Leave and Productivity Management

In line with the approved Leave policy, JCT employees are entitled to 24/27 days leave per annum to be taken
at a time convenient to JCT and agreed upon by line management. 80 sick leave days in a three (3) year cycle
are also provided. The section below provides a detailed overall leave management and analysis per

department.

Table 19: Overall Company Leave Analysis

Type of Leave Q1 (Jul- Q2 (Oct-| Q3 (Jan- | Q4 (April- | Total Leave | % Leave days
Sep) Dec) Mar) Jun) Days Taken taken
Annual Leave 684.75 662 1105 36 2487.75 74.16
: .94
Sick Leave 110 114 143 0 367 10.9
Family
Responsibility 26 19 15 0 60 1.79
Leave
Study Leave 35 69 13 0 117 3.49
Unauthorised
0 8 0 0 8 0.23
Leave
Maternity Leave 61 0 168 86 315 289
Total 916.75 872 1444 122 3354.75 100

122 maternity leave days were taken. Only 36 annual leave days were taken in this quarter. Employees could
not take other leave as the country was under lockdown for nearly 3 months due to Covid-19 pandemic.

% leave days taken
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Figure 1: Leave Analysis
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Annual leave stills tops list as per figure 1 above by 74%, Sick Leave at 11%, Maternity leave at 9.39% then
Study leave at 3,49% and Family Responsibility leave at 1,79%. Human resources will continue to monitor the
leave and employee attendance to mitigate against the abuse of sick and family responsibility leave.

A table below provides a detailed breakdown of leave days taken per theatre:

Table 20: Joburg Theatre

Number of Total Leave
Staff Type of leave Apr 2020 | May 2020 | Jun 2020 Taken
Annual Leave 14 13 3 30
Sick Leave 0 0 0 0
Family Responsibility 0 0 0 0
Leave
132 Study Leave 0 0 0 0
Unpaid Leave 0 0 0 0
Maternity Leave 34 3 19 56
Total 48 i 22 86

Table 21: Soweto Theatre

N“'s'l':?f’ &t Type of leave Apr2020 | May 2020 | Jun 2020 wf;;::"e
Annual Leave 0 0 0 0
Sick Leave 0 0 0 0
:z,ly Responsibility 0 0 0 0
e Study Leave 0 0 0 0
Unpaid Leave 0 0 0 0
Maternity Leave 0 7 23 30
Total 0 7 23 30

Table 22: Roodepoort Theatre
N“:l::fr & Type of leave Apr2020 | May 2020 | Jun 2020 T°f;|:'::ve
Annual Leave 6 0 0 6
Sick Leave 0 0 0 0
E:;r\\lléy Responsibility 0 0 0 0
13 Study Leave 0 0 0 0
Unpaid Leave 0 0 0 0
Maternity Leave 0 0 0 0
Total 6 0 0 6
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Section 8: Disciplinary Matters and Outcomes

JCT’s Human Resources Manager’s office deals with employee / employer related issues and thereby
maintaining direct lines of communication with employees. All entity’s labour disputes are referred to South
African Local Government Bargaining Council (SALGBC) for conciliation and/or arbitration. The Human
Resources Manager’s office deals with employee / employer related issues and thereby maintaining direct lines
of communication with employees.

Union Membership

No employee joined the labour union in this quarter. A total of 109 employees belong to labour unions of which
49 subscribe to IMATU, 60 to SAMWU, 122 employees who are not affiliated to any Union pay Agency Shop
Fees to the Council. 3 employees do not pay Agency Shop fees. The 49 IMATU members are the City’s recently

in sourced employees.

Labour Relations matters

There was no labour cases reported in this term.

Table 23: Labour Relations Cases

Department | Nature Outcome Effective date
Building & Dishonesty  .i.e. | Disciplinary Hearing put on hold as a result of | 01 March 2020
Security Misrepresentation | Lockdown due COVID 19. The Prosecutor from the
of qualification. City has been appointed. We are finalizing the
appointment of Presiding Officer.
Client Misconduct Investigation for alleged misconduct underway. The | 02 March 202
Services appointed Investigator could not commence with

the investigation due to the declaration of the
nationwide Lockdown caused by Covid-19

pandemic.
Hospitality & | Unfair dismissal Arbitration set for 8 & 9 July 2020 at the South | 8 July 2020
Catering African Bargaining Council (SALGBC).

Despite the challenges, it is clear that majority of JCT staff uphold the policies, procedures and values of the
organisation. This conclusion is drawn from the total number of misconduct cases that were conducted within
the quarter which resulted in both written warnings. All matters were handled in line with the approved
disciplinary code policy of the organisation.

Table 24: Number of cases

No. Of
Cases Comments
Cases
Death and memorial service. IO
Bereavement supporth There was no bereavement support intervention
intervention
Study IO 33 employees registered during the term under review.
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No. Of
Cases Comments
Cases

Miscellaneous cases (4] There was none

GRAND TOTAL 1

Section 9: Employee Wellness

No Wellness Day was conducted this term. Joburg City Theatres has Service Level Agreement with ICAS, the
service provider, to develop and implement Employee Assistance Programme (EAP). Icas has launched its EAP
across the three theatres. ICAS provides 24 hours online (internet, website, WhatsApp, call-back, etc.), inbound
and outbound telephonic, and face-to-face health and wellness information and counselling to staff members.
Number of employees received counselling for the trauma experienced with the untimely passing away of the
Production Manager.
As part of the organizations strategy for employee wellness and internal communications:

e Employees are continuously participating in the internal gym.

e The company hosts aerobics sessions three times a week for an hour.

e These classes are good for exercising and promoting staff engagement

e The aerobics class also partake in the external walks/runs and wellness activities.

Section 10: Employee Benefits

The Company is a participating employer in the various retirement benefit schemes through which the City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality and its associated Municipal Entities (MEs) provide post-employment
benefits to their permanent employees.

Defined Benefit Funds
Joburg City Theatres currently operates three funds and has the following number of employees on each fund:

e Johannesburg Municipal Pension Fund (NMG) has 13 employees.
e E-Joburg Pension Fund has 141 employees.
¢ Mutual Gratuity Pension Fund (MGF) has 7 employees.

The total number of employees on pension funds is 161.
Medical Aid Funds

The company also administers three accredited medical aid schemes and pays a minimum of 60% and 75%
monthly premium contribution on behalf of its members. No employee joined medical aid this quarter.
Currently 76 employees are members of the schemes as follows:

e Discovery has 74 members, of which 52 receive 60% employer contributions, 18 receives 75%, while 4
employees on total cost to company contribute 100%.

e LA Health has 1 member who receives 60% company contributions

e Key Health has only 1 member who receives 60% company contributions

e ————
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Company Allowances

Forty-one (43) employees receive home owners allowance while fifty-four (54) receive allowances towards the
use for business purposes of their personal cell phones.

Section 11: Occupational Health & Safety Programmes

The Occupational Health and Safety Manager is a member of the COJ’s workplace wellness coordinators forum
which deals amongst others with the HIV Counselling and Training outreach campaign to assist employees in
screening and the COJ Group SHE Steering committee which ensures the company’s compliance to the
Occupational Health and Safety Act, (85 of 1993).

Occupational Health and Safety-in the workplace-is regulated by the Occupational Health and-Safety Act, (85 of
1993).

Section (16)1 places the responsibility and liability on the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) to ensure that the duties
imposed on the employer are properly discharged. The implication hereof is that the CEO has to ensure that an
occupational health and safety management system is implemented which will give effect to the provisions of
this Act.

The City Manager is the section 16(1) responsible person for the COJ and the MD’s/CEQ’s are the section 16(1)
responsible persons for the Municipal Entities. The Act makes provision for the CEQ’s / MD’s to appoint person’s
under their control to assist them in the duties in relation to the provisions of the Act. Joburg City Theatres has
appointed Lieb Venter as the Liaison with the COJ Group SHE Directorate as the company’s current Occupational
Health and Safety Manager. The General Managers of both Soweto Theatre and Roodepoort Theatre were also
appointed as the Health and Safety Coordinators at their respective theatres. The Health and Safety committee
is functional and meetings are convened regularly as required. Inspections are undertaken and all Health and
Safety equipment is up-to-date.

Permanent and part-time staff members are continuously trained in the areas of First Aid, Safety, Fire, and
evacuation. A safety committee is being established and will have regular monthly and quarterly meetings.

HIV/AIDS on the Workplace

The management of HIV/AIDS is an important challenge facing every organisation in the country. Joburg City
Theatres is committed to maintaining the health and welfare of all its employees as well as providing a safe and
hygienic working environment. JCT’s policy on HIV/AIDS ensures that no employee, or applicant, is discriminated
against based on their HIV status. The company’s policy is aligned with the City of Johannesburg’s AIDS Strategy.

JCT has adopted the following core principles as a basis for its HIV/AIDS policy:

e Continuously assess the risks posed by HIV/AIDS on the business;

e Limit the number of new infections among employees. In order to ensure that all employees are made
aware of the problem and - in the process — hope to reduce the rate of HIV/AIDS, JT supplies free condoms
in all washroom areas back stage.

I ————————————————————————— a1
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e Distribute pamphlets internally to employees relating to HIV/AIDS and participate in the Voluntary
Counselling and Testing in support of World AIDS Day.

e Ensure employees living with HIV/AIDS are aware of their rights and that their rights are respected and
protected.

e Provide care and support to employees living with HIV/AIDS within current legislative parameter

= @ —— e —— == ]
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CHAPTER FIVE: FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND EXPOSURE

Section 1: Statement of Financial Position

Joburg Theatre (SOC) Limited 2019
{Registralion number 2000/013032/07)
Financial Siatemenis for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of F_imnc_iall ‘Po_rsjti‘on as_at 30 June 2020

Figures in Rand Nole(sy 2020 2019

ASSETS

Current Assets

Invenioties 2 1,328,087 2838677

Receivables from exchange {ransactions 3 10,075,352 5,333,833

VAT receivable 4 2,336,004 2322022

Cash and cash eguivalents 5 8,776,182 11,052,694
22,616,636 21,647,426

Non-Current Assets

Praperty, planl and equipment ] 14,704,563  14,779.470

Iniangible assels 7 459,740 619,802

Heritage assets 8 1,602,700 1,602,700
46,767,003 17,001,972

Total Assels 39,282,638 18,549,398

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities N

Payables from exchange transactions ;3 9 26,735,237 14,308,756

Provigiong aﬁ\ b 10 3,500,257 2,786,043
30,236,494 17,094,799

%
Non-Current Liabilities N | ’
Deferred tax ¢ 1 2,336,864 2,336,864

Total Liabilities o %\ 32,672,358 19,431,663
NET ASSETS ’ 8,710,280 19,117,735
Share capital 31 10 10
Reservas

Investment from Shareholder ' 1,784,049 1,784,049
Accumulated sumplus 4,926,221 17 333676
Total Net Assels 6,710,280 19,417,736
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Section 2: Statement of Financial Performance

Joburg Theatre (SOC) Limited 2019

{Registration number 2000/013032007)
Financial S{atemenis for the year ended 30 June 2020

Statement of Financial Performance

Figuras in Rand Noie(s) 2020 2019
Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions

Tickeling services 12 744,910 1,322,766
Calering services 12 27,207,182 31,926,069
Rental fachities and equipmant 12 4,907,355 6,611,879
Arts alive festival 12 6,695,650 8,700,000
in-house licket sales 12 7.713,028 9,282 552
Other income 13 898,785 966,188
Inferesnt received - invesiment 14 4,734,737 5,033,894
Total revenue from exchange transactions 54,801,647 63,843,368

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Trangter revenue

Subsidy 1% 128,469,000 116,447,000
Total revenue 12 183,370,647 180,290,368
Expenditure

Employee relaled costs 16 (91,645,004 (77,525,627)
Depreciation and amortisation 7 (1.797,526)  (1,641,029)
Debt Impairment {46,266)

Total expenditure (196,776,102) (187,380,202)

Deficit before taxation _ {12,407,465)  (7,089,924)

Taxation = 20 . {1,896,448)

Deficit for the year < {12,407,45668) (6,193,476}
"'1I‘-_

7S

Transfers and Subsidies K 16 (20,645,000) (20,466,500)
General Expenses (b 19 (81,690.482) (87,700870)
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Section 3: Cash Flow Statement

Joburg Theatre (SOC) Limited 2019
{Registration number 2000/013032/07)
Financial Slatemeanis for the year ended 30 June 2020

Cash Flow Statemgm |

Figures in Rand - MNOIGV(!';):M 2020 2019

Cash flows from opersting activities

Recelpte

Sale of goods and services 45411405 85 080,554

Grants 128,469,000 116,447,000

Intenest income 4734737 5.033.891

178,615,142 186,561,448

Payments

Employee costs (89,987,167) (77,181,146)

Suppliers (89,341,225) (110,431,297}

Taxes . (463,622)
(179,326,082) (188,076,065)

Net cash flows from operating activities Fy {713,860) (1,614,617)

Cash flows from investing activities

o

(1,562,5656) (3,003,252}

Purchase of properly, plant and egquipment \
Purchage of other inlangible assels {43,623)
Purchases of herilage assels -“ 8 - {115,000}

' |

Net cash flows from investing activities (1,562,666) (3,162,078)

Cash flows from financing activities

(2,276,506) (4,676,692
11,052,604 15,729,386

5 8,776,188 11,062,694

Net increaselidecrease) in cash and cash eqy
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of ity

Cash and cash eguivalents at the end of the ynr

L = e e e e e e e e
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Joburg Theatre (SOC) Limited 2018
[RRJHARECS mbE 2001303207
Find 2ol FasEmEnis fof i genr cnm 30 Juns 2020

Accounting Policies

126 GRAP mnwm ﬁnpmvw and sfiwotive [continued)
GRAP Tiarsh! o Purcears Setuaan Enbiles Not Under Commen: Sanirl

GRAR 107 Mazgens
Notes to the Financial Statemants
Figuas in Rand P N L

2. IRVENTORIES

ek 1 prograes 421,038 1.935,,5533

CorsLmable slares 309,21 284.750

Trading Shoti - Fobd 3na Beversge ‘ sﬂ? 7id 1,614 264
152868 BT

W in mmu

ﬁp&nﬁ Balance 1039835 4662826

Briar ¥ear Wip Transfernd [1038,833)  (4,562.826)

Curent Year wWip

&625 885 1,038, 553

N
QO

i; enlng lBalihBE 284,780
fack mcvement for year (10,562}
LI
Trading Stock
Opening Balange 1514,26 674,538

Stack Moveman| «5!]! §1E Eéi?ﬂ

Jobumg CHy Teealres operabe a6 a bolh recehing and peodissicn houge The eXpend Zare on shaw productsns peiar ko

;lém uF I5 irealed as Work In Progress (WIR) Tor example, the coics purple,my chidsern: my a*ica,macheth sahierk
va

Consumadie E%OreE contar amongst cihers cleaning malerias, grocery fems, ghiing, [Bpes, palnls and slationesy.
These ems are consumed by Bae company In tva dally bueIness Dperations. The amount consumed E recogased as
&n expense when the corsLables are requiskiessd from ihe stofes. Inventonies he for carsumption at no chare
7@ measurad at Be lower of cost and curer? nepizcement coet and are faify valugd.

Trading sbozi - Food and Beverage contats amongst othees bar-, restaurani- and hospEaily tock. Tvading slock 16
measUned at Bve lowes of 2ost of &1 nzaksabie value.

The amount of wriiz-ois tor inver2arg In the priar and G renl years 'eaeE ZBro ).
3. FRECENABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRAHSACTIINE

Trade deblors 6317580 1,988,016
ALIFUED InpDme 200,633 18974
Relabed Parky Debios 2.856,99D 3,333 343

18,075,352 3,855,633

N/B: Only high level notes have been included on the quarterly report per directive from group governance
however full notes available on separate set of annual financial statements.

R R E—
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Joburg Theatre {SOC) Limited 2019
(Registration number 2000/013032/07)
Financial Siatements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

2020 2018

3. RECENABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS jeontinued)
Trade and ather receivables

Trade Debtors- represents rent receivable for use of facilities (hospitality and theatre rentals).

Related party debtors - represants the amounts cwed to Joburg City Theawes by the City of Johannesburg and
Municipal Owned Enfities. Included in the related parly recefvables is other hospitaT™ reatal and catering services
rendered to COJ and its MOE's. Joburg City Theatres does mot charge interest on related pariy debiors.

Debtors are measured at fair value.

Fair value of trade and other receivables

Receivables From Exchange Transackions by Class

Rental af Facilifies and Equipment 173,847 B0.713
Hospifafity and Catering 5,206,335 2830 848
City of Joburg - CGAPEX 1.B53,458 -

City of Jobusg Entities 8387 887 9,082

other 4,497 834 2,507,188
; 12,208,462 3,333,832

Debtors Age Analysis

B0 Days + 2,852, 705 2,475,352
60 Bays 187,782 TD.853
30 Days 802,313 80,087
Current 8,886,682 2,708,730

12,809,462 3,333.832

4. VAT RECEIVABLE

VAT 2,335,004 2,322,022

The campany accounts fer VAT on an aconual basis.
5. CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 145,080 120,747
MNedbank accounts balznce 8,831,132 3,240,083

8,776,192 3,360,840

Current assets 8,776,182 11,052,604
Current GabTitias - -

8,776,192  11.052.694

Cash and cash eguivalents comprise of cash on hand, curreni account and deposits on call accounts that are readily
converfible info known amounts of cash. The effective interest rates of the cash equivalents investment as st end of

the period were between &% and 8,12%.

_—_—— e
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Joburg Theatre (SOC) Limited 2019
(Registvation number 2000/013032/07) -
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

2020 2018
12. REVENUE
Ticketing services 744010 1,322,786
Catering services 27,207.182  31.926.08%
Rental facilties and eguipmeni 4,807,355 8891678
Aris Alive 8.005650 8,700,000
inchouse Heke! sales 7.793.028 $.282.552
Other income 8BE.TRS $E5,188
Interest received - invesiment 4734737 §,033.804
Subsidy 126460000 918447000
183,370,647 180,290 368
The amnount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or
sefvices are as follows: 7
Ticketing services 744,010 1,322,788
Catéring services 27,207,982  31.928.000
Rental facilities and equipmani 4,007,356 8,611,878
Arts Alive 8,895 650 8,700,000
In-house tickel sales 7.713.028 9,282 552
Othet intome 888 7BS - 95B.188
Interest received - invesiment 4734737 5,023 604
_ 54901647 63843368
The amount included in revenue arising from non-e4 _'i‘n nsactions is
as fallows: o
Taxation revenue L
Transfer revenue o
Subsity fram City of Joburg 128,460,000 118,447,000
13. OTHER INCOME
Othert income 898, 7R5 966,188
The fabla below providas the breakdovwn of bther income:
14, INTEREST RECEIVED - INVESTMENT
Intarest revenus A o
Bank 4,734 737 5,033 804
fhimrest incame is caloulated wsing the eifective intersst rate between 8% to 8%
The fable below shows the interssi reteived o two bank Sesounts -
Bank 2020 2018
Investes Bank Limited - 28472 3,237 875
Nedbank Limited 4,485 384 1,788,210
4,524,856 5,033,804

s ———————————————————————
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Joburg Theatre (SOC) Limited 20198
{Registration number 200001303207}
Financial Siatements for the yesr ended 30 June 2020

Notes to the Financial Statements

2020 2018
13. SUBSIDY
Cperating Grants and Subsidies
Joburg Theaire £0.870.888  BD53T 248
Roodepocrt Theatre B.B4T, ¥02 8,828,308
Sawreta Theatre 18,750,840 18,081,450
128,468,000 116,447,000

The subsidy seczived from-the City of Johannesburg Metropslitan Municipelity is in terms-of the sernvice delivery
apresmeni to provide semices in accordance with the agreed abligafions for opersting Joburg Theatre; Roedepoort

Theatre and Soweio Theatre.

16. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Salaries and Wages 60525084  78,413.254
Employee costs included in ather expences 1,120,000 1,192,372
91,645.004 77925627

Chief Executive Officer

Annusl Remuneration k 2,224 803 1,380,800

Perfarmance Bonuses ; 184712 234207

Coniributions to UIF, SDL, Medical Aid and Pension Funds_ ~ 22 480 6,122
2438 963 4,640,129

Chief Operating Officer

Annual Remuneration 1,332,100 1,250,788

Discretionary Bonuses 175111 183,658

Confributions to UIF, SDL, Medizal Aid a £45.488 381,650

Other - 198,058
1,952 678 1,994,171

Chief Financial Dfficer

Annual Remuneration 1,837,373 1.535,082

Perfarmance bonus 212,568 201,169

Confributions to UIF, SDL, Medical Aid and Pension Funds 484 918 412,585

Other - 100,103
2.334 057 2,248 540

Executive Producer

Company Secretary

Annual Remuneration 1,143 888 1,074,083

Performance Bonuses 180,372 140,534

Coniributions te UIF, SDL, Medical Aid and Pension Funds 24,788 i4.238

Other - i2.000
1.319.052 1,240,835

17. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Preperty, pland and eguipment 1,787,528 1.841.020
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Section 5: Report on Irregular, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure and Due Process

Irregular Expenditure

During the quarter under review, there was no irregular expenditure that was incurred.

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

During the quarter and year under review, there was no fruitless and wasteful expenditure that was incurred.
Section 6: Pending Litigations and Possible Liabilities

No litigations during the quarter under review. However the litigation that was reported in the previous quarter
is still underway - JCT has received a letter of demand from one law firm, Brugmans Incorporated acting on
behalf of Bosch family, the family whose child fell into the pit following a ballet show (Cinderella). They have
sent this notice to the City, ICT, JPC and Joburg Ballet.

JCT has engaged Group Legal on the matter since the Group also administers our insurance policy.

Section 7: Insurance Claims against/to MOE/Department

During the quarter under review, there were no insurance claims against/to MOE/Department.

= e
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CHAPTER SIX: INTERNAL & EXTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS

Section 1: Results of Internal Audits

The purpose of this report is to provide status on the internal and external audit findings raised by Group Risk
Assurance Services (Internal Auditors) and Auditor General {(External Auditors) and progress status of the current
financial year (2019/20) coverage plan.

Section 2: Progress on Resolution of Internal Audit Findings.

There were only 4 audit reports that were issued and an additional 2 was issued by the 29 June 2020. Internal
auditors raised 05 findings thus far in the 2019/20 financial year. The audit is currently in progress. The graph below
depicting findings by department:

Analysis of audit findings 2019/20

40 34

& /5
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= | B
: e’ & Y
‘96‘\ & s
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e 2019/20 mmm2018/16 ——Linear 19/20 ——Linear 2018/19

Progress on resolution of internal audit findings.

All of the 05 audit finding that was issued thus far for the financial year 19/20 have been closed by management.
The remainder of the reports that came late and the ones still to follow will be addressed in the 2020/21 financial
year. Management remains committed to addressing audit findings with urgency to improve the system of internal
controls and ultimately the control environment as a whole.

Action plans for external audit findings

ACTION PLAN FOR INTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS 2019/20
Finding | Department Description Status | Managements' comment

1 Repairs & Insufficient backup power
Maintenance | generator

Budget allocated procurement to start in
1%t quarter 2020/21.

Roodepoort Theatre fixed the Mozart fire
door

2 Repairs & Fire door of Mozart room at
Maintenance | Roodepoort Theatre still not
broken and not repaired

3 Health & No designated sick room at
Safety Roodepoort Theatre

The designated sick room and oxygen
cylinder has been provided

= = - - = —— e
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ACTION PLAN FOR INTERNAL AUDIT FINDINGS 2019/20

Finding | Department Description Status | Managements' comment
4 Health & Forklift licences not Training arranged
Safety renewed since expired on
the 04th of April 2015
5 Security Inadequate Security Uniform and two way radios has been

Management | Equipment-Insourced acquired.
security personnel in
Soweto, Roodepport and
Joburg Theatre ddi not have
two way radio, panic
buttons,pocket
books,torches, handcuffs

and uiforms

Section 3: Progress on Resolution of Auditor General Audit Findings.
Analysis of AG Audit Findings

In the past years, there has been a reduction on the external audit findings year on year i.e. they moved from 25 in
2013/14 financial year to 6 in 2014/15, from 6 to 3 in 2015/16 then to only 2 in 2016/17 financial year. However in
2017/18 financial year there has been an increase of 9 audit findings year on year. The 2018/19 financial year saw
a significant decrease in audit findings year on year with only 3 findings being raised compared to 11 that were
raised in 2017/18, this equates to a 72% reduction.

AG F I N D ' N G‘S\lumber of findings ;

0 “TFY 2018; IT

* Number of findings ; y=0,2x+4,4
FY 2015;6 = Number of findings ; R?2=0,0074
FY 2016; 3 S ———
I e = Number of findings ;
= Number of findings ; FY 2019; 3

. FY 2017; 2 '

Progress on resolution of external audit findings.

Auditor General raised 3 findings in 2018/19 financial year, all three findings have been resolved.

Managements'
Finding# | Department Description Status comment
1 | Finance During the testing of accounts payable Management agreed
it was noted that they are misstated by with the audit
an amount of R154,777 finding and the
necessary
| adjustment was
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Managements'
Finding# | Department Description Status comment
done on the Annual
Financial Statements
Management
investigated the
suppliers and found
that the mentioned
individuals picked up
by CAAT had
resigned from state
employment,
therefore were no
longer in the service
of the-state:

SAP implementation
underway.

2| SCM During the audit of SCM, suppliers in
which persons in the service of the
state institutions have an interest were
identified through computer assisted
audit techniques and these bidders’
declarations of interest were
requested.

3 | H&C The system generated audit logs on the
application systems, (Pilot & Falcon)
were not enabled as these systems are
not designed to log changes

Section 4: Statement of Internal Control

The internal Audit of Joburg City Theatres provides the Audit and Risk Committee and management with assurance
that the internal controls are adequate and effective; in line with section 165 of the MFMA, the Institute of Internal
Auditors (I1A) Standards and the requirements of King IV report on Corporate Governance. This is achieved by
means of regular risk based audit assignments, as well as the identification of corrective actions and suggested
enhancements to the controls and processes in respect of key risk areas identified.

In line with best practice and Municipal Management Finance Act (MFMA) requirements, Group Risk and Assurance
Services (GRAS) compiled a risk-based audit coverage plan for the Joburg City Theatres which was approved by the
Audit and Risk Committee in July 2019. This audit coverage plan has taken into consideration areas that are
perceived to be of high risk as per the risk registers for the three theatres and areas identified by management.
The timelines indicated on the plan were discussed and agreed with management.

Internal Audit provided assurance on high risks identified during risk assessments by prioritising these areas during
annual planning. Some of the medium and low risk areas were also audited where possible. The system of internal
control was reasonably adequate and effective, for the quarter under review.

The following table depict the current internal control dashboard:

e ——
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Section 5: Dashboard Report — Drivers of Internal Control to Achieve Clean Administration

AUDITEE NAME: Joburg City Theatres SOC LTD ASSESSMENT PERFORMED ON: Jul 19 - Jun 20
ASSESSMENT PFMA |Apr—Jun’19 Jul— Sep'19 Oct - Dec'19 Jan — Mar'20 Apr'19 — Mar'20
PERIOD COVERED: . : : : ,
(Tick as appropriate) [MFMA [Jul - Sep'19 Oct—Dec'19| |Jan—Mar20| |[Apr—Jun20 Jul19 — Jun'20
No. | DRIVERS i Required controls that are able to prevent, or detect and correct ASSESSMENT
: misstatements / control deviations / instances of non-compliance
Improved g in a timely manner, are currently in place; care is required to Good .
! maintain the situation for changes in conditions
i 8 ©
1 Progress in the implementation of controls that are able ] [
” Unchanged ' to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements / control tn progress g % S |
g i deviations / instances of non-compliance in a timely c £ =
E manner is noted, but improvement is stili required g S g—
] Required controls that are able to prevent, or detect Intervention i ‘E [
H and correct, missiatements / contrel deviations/ " o (&)
Regressed [ instances of non-campliance in & tmely menner, are required
! not in place; intervention is required to design and
! implement appropriate controls

Movement from previous assessment:

1.a | Provide effective leadership based on a culture of honesty, ethical business practices and ‘
good governance, protecting and enhancing the best interests of the entity

1.b | Exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance reporting and |

| compliance and related internal controls !

1.c | Implement effective HR management to ensure that adequate and sufficiently skilled '
resources are in place and that performance is monitored :

1.d | Establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable and support understanding
and execution of internal control objectives, processes and responsibilities

'1.e | Develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to address internal control
deficiencies

1.f | Establish an IT governance framework that supports and enables the business, delivers value
and improves performance

Movement from previous assessment:

2.a

| reporting

Implement proper_ record keeping in a timely manner to ensure that complete, relevant and
accurate information is accessible and available to support financial and performance

2b

implement controls over daily and monthly processing and reconciling of transactions

2.¢c

Prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and performance reports that are supported
and evidenced by reliable information

2d

| Design and implement formal controls over IT systems to ensure the reliability of the systems

Review and monitor compliance with applicable legislation

and the availability, accuracy and protection of information

Movement from previous assessment:

3.a | Implement appropriate risk management activities to ensure that regular risk assessments,
including consideration of IT risks and fraud prevention, are conducted and that a risk strategy
to address the risks is developed and monitored

3.b | Ensure that there is an adequately resourced and functioning internal audit unit that identifies
internal control deficiencies and recommends corrective action effectively

3.c | Ensure that the audit committee promotes accountability and service delivery through

evaluating and monitoring responses to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of
the internal control environment including financial and performance reporting and compliance

with legislation.
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ethical business practices and good governance, protecting
|_and enhancing the best interests of the entity

AUDITEE NAME: Joburg City Theatres SOC LTD ASSESSMENT PERFORMED ON: Jul 19 - Jun 2020
ASSESSMENT PFMA |Apr—Jun'19 Jul — Sep'19 Oct — Dec'19 Jan — Mar'20 Apr'19 — Mar'20
PERIOD COVERED:
(Tick as appropriate) |MFMA lJul - Sep'19 Oct-Dec'19| [Jan—Mar20| |Apr—Jun20 Jul19 —Jun'20
No. | DRIVERS J COMMITMENTS

' 1.a | Provide effective leadership based on a culture of honesty, Maintain the performance through-out.

1.b | Exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and Maintain the performance through-out

performance reporting and compliance and related internal

| controls B -

| 1.c | Implement effective HR management to ensure that adequate Maintain the performance through-out
and sufficiently skilled resources are in place and that
performance is monitored

1.d | Establish and communicate policies and procedures to enable Maintain the performance through-out
and support understanding and execution of internal control
objectives, processes and responsibilities B | -

1.e | Develop and monitor the implementation of action plans to Maintain the performance-through-out

| address internal control deficiencies

1.f Establish an IT governance framework that supports and Maintain the performance-through-out
enables the business, delivers value and improves

- performance

! ! | |

2.a | Implement proper record keeping in a timely manner to ensure | Audit findings related to supporting documents
that complete, relevant and accurate information is accessible not submitted or not adequately addressing
and available to support financial and performance reporting B issues raised. - |

2.b | Implement controls over daily and monthly processing and Maintain the performance through-out
reconciling of transactions

2.c | Prepare regular, accurate and complete financial and Some audit findings related to supporting
performance reports that are supported and evidenced by documents not being properly kept or
reliable information submitted

2.d | Review and monitor compliance with applicable legislation New internal audit findings that include

- | ___compliance issues.

2.e | Design and implement formal controls over IT systems to New IT audit findings under general controls
ensure the reliability of the systems and the availability, audit report yet to be presented
accuracy and protection of information |

3.a | Implement appropriate risk management activities to ensure Maintain the performance through-out
that regular risk assessments, including consideration of IT
risks and fraud prevention, are conducted and that a risk
strategy to address the risks is developed and monitored a

3.b | Ensure that there is an adequately resourced and functioning Maintain the performance through-out
internal audit unit that identifies internal control deficiencies
and recommends corrective action effectively |

3.c | Ensure that the audit committee promotes accountability and Maintain the performance through-out
service delivery through evaluating and monitoring responses
to risks and providing oversight over the effectiveness of the
internal control environment including financial and
performance reporting and compliance with legislation. |

= —  __— ———  — _— — ————— — — —,——— — —  — — —— —  — —  —— — —___ ——1%
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